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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The directors present their Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the attached financial statements.

Mitel Europe Limited operates as a holding company for the EMEA region within the Mitel group of companies and
charges management fees to its subsidiary holdings for services provided.

The company made a loss of £65,000 in the year (2018 — £8,216,000 profit). The profit in 2018 was largely attributable
to a profit on the sale of investments to a fellow group company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 30 January 2020 the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a novel strain of Coronavirus disease,
later named COVID-19, a Public Health Emergency of International Concern, and on 11 March 2020 declared a
pandemic. Further details can be found in the Going Concern section below and in note 16 to the financial statements.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

It is anticipated that the company will continue to exist as a service provider to subsidiary holdings for the foreseeable
future.

Following the UK’s exit from the European Union on 31 January 2020 and the forthcoming end to the transition phase
of Brexit on 31 December 2020, there is a general level of economic uncertainty. Management are monitoring the
situation closely in order to be able to respond to any changes in the political and economic climate.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Given the nature of the company, there are no key performance indicators that the directors feel are specific to this
entity.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The main financial risk is the carrying value of the investments in the company’s subsidiaries. The directors prepare
annual impairment reviews in order to ascertain whether impairment is required against the investments.

GOING CONCERN

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. In reaching this
conclusion the directors have assessed both the impact of COVID-19 on the business as well as the financial position
and performance of the business below.

COVID-19

The worldwide spread of COVID-19 has resulted in authorities implementing numerous measures to contain the virus,
including travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, social and physical distancing, and business limitations and
shutdowns. The COVID-19 pandemic has created a global slowdown of economic activity, which has, and will likely
continue to decrease demand for a broad variety of goods and services, while also disrupting sales channels and
marketing activities until the disease is contained. As at the date of this report, the directors and management do not
consider the COVID-19 pandemic to have had a material effect on the company’s financial position given that Mitel
Europe Limited operates as a holding company for the EMEA region within the Mitel group of companies and its
trading activity is limited to charging management fees to its subsidiary holdings for services provided.



MITEL . EUROPE LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

GOING CONCERN (continued)
COVID-19 (continued)

At 31 December 2019, the company held net current assets of £6,002,000, consisting largely of current intercompany
receivables of £15,903,000, cash at bank of £242,000 and current intercompany payables of £8,466,000. The company
generated a loss in the year of £116,000 which is the result of a £1,880,000 impairment being charged to the income:
statement. The company has limited financial obligations outside the-Mitel Group and revenue is generated through
management fees for services provided to its subsidiary companies at a contracted operatiiig margin percentage.

In assessing the going concern position of Mitel. Europe Limited the directors have-assessed. the consolidated
performance of the Mitel Group at the Mitel Networks (International) Limited consolidation level, as the company is.
a wholly owned subsidiary of Mitel Networks (International) Limited, and is reliant on the pérformance of the wider
group to enable it to continue to generate management fee income.

The directors and management have considered all the available information including reviewing the consolidated
group forecasts for a period of twelve months from the date of signing the financial statements and have no reason to
believe that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt over the ability of the Mitel group to continue:
as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of signing this report and, therefore, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the report and accounts. '

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed.en behalf of the Board

G/

Director
14 December 2020



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019,

ACCOUNTING PERIOD

These financial statements are for the year ended 31 December 2019. The comparative results are for the year ended
31 December 2018.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid during the year (2018 - £nil), and no dividends have been paid or proposed after the balance
sheet date.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the company, who served throughout the financial year and subsequently, are as follows.

G J Hiscock
C J Evans

R E Hodgetts
S Taylor

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made
during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Details of future developments can be found in the Strategic Report on page 2.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 30 January 2020 the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a novel strain of Coronavirus disease,
later named COVID-19, a Public Health Emergency of International Concemn, and on 11 March 2020 declared a
pandemic. Further details can be found in the Strategic Report on page 2.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Given the nature of the company, the main financial risk is the carrying value of the investment in its subsidiaries.
The directors prepare annual impairment reviews in order to ascertain whether an impairment is required against its
investments.

Other financial risks include:

Credit risk

The company’s financial assets that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash at bank and in hand, and
accounts receivable and other receivables. Cash and cash equivalents are invested in government and commercial
paper with investment grade listing. The majority of receivables are with other group companies and as such, this risk
is limited.

Forelgn currency risk

The company transacts mostly in British pounds and is therefore not exposed to significant foreign currency risk. It
is, however, exposed to some currency rate fluctuations relating to future net cash flows from operations
predominately in Euros and US dollars. From time to time, the company uses foreign currency forward contracts and
foreign currency swaps to minimise the short-term impact of currency fluctuations on foreign currency receivables,
payables and inter-company balances. These contracts are not entered into for speculative purposes and are not treated
as hedges for accounting purposes.



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:
e 5o faras each of the directors is aware, thiere is no relevant audit information 6f which the company’s auditor
is unaware; and
e each of the directors has taken all thé steps that they ought to have taken a5 a diréetor to.make themselvés:
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that 'the. company’s auditor-is; aware .of that
information.
This confirmation is given and should be iriterpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies:Act
2006.

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP as the company’s auditor will be proposed at:the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors,
and signed on behalf of the Board

<
G J Hiscock
Director
14 December 2020



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”. Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of Mitel Europe Limited (the ‘company’):

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its loss for the
year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

The profit and loss account;

the balance sheet;

the statement of changes in equity;

the statement of accounting policies; and
the related notes 1 to 17.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:

e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

e the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MITEL EUROPE LIMITED (continued)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. '

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
o the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its. environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.



: MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MITEL EUROPE LIMITED (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Andrew Woodhead (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Cardiff, United Kingdom

15 December 2020



PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2019

TURNOVER

Administrative expenses

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
Amounts written off investments

Net finance income

Profit from sale of fixed asset investments
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Tax on (loss)/profit

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

All activities derive from continuing operations.

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

Note 2019 2018
£000 £°000
3 6,503 4,414
(6,114) (5,631)
389 (1,217)
(1,880) (1,284)
4 1,187 728
- 10,187
6 (304) 8,414
7 188 (198) !
(116) 8,216

There have been no recognised gains and losses for the current financial year or the prior financial year other than as
stated in the profit and loss account and, accordingly, no separate statement of comprehensive income is presented.

The notes on pages 13 to 23 form part of these financial statements.

10



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2019
2019 2018
o \ Note £°000 -£'000
FIXED ASSETS
Investments. 8 146,939 148,819
Debtors due after more than one year 9 24,930 25,804
171,869 174,623
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors due within one year 10 16,492 16,733
Cash at bank and in hand 242 455
16,734 17,188
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within
one year 12 (10,732) (14,201)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,002 2,987
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ‘
ASSETS 177,871 177,610
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after A
more than one yeéar 13 (11,798) (11,472)
NET ASSETS 166,073 166,138
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called-up share capital 14 2 2
Share premium account 13,736 13,736
Profit and loss account 152,335 152,400
SHAREHOLDER'’S FUNDS 166,073 166,138

The financial statements of Mitel Europe Limited, registered number 09059484, were approved by the' Board of
Directors and authorised for issue ori 14 December 2020.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

s

| Hiscotk
Director



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
At 31 December 2019

Note

At 1 January 2018

Profit for the financial year, being the total
comprehensive expense

Issue of share capital 14

At 31 December 2018
Loss for the financial year
Total comprehensive income

Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based
payments 15

At 31 December 2019

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

Share Profit
Share premium and loss
capital account account Total
£000 £000 £'000 £°000
2 12,429 144,184 156,615
= - 8,216 8,216
- 1,307 - 1,307
2 13,736 152,400 166,138
- - (116) (116)
- - (116) (116)
- - 51 51
2 13,736 152,335 166,073




MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards.
The particular accounting policies adopted, which have been applied consistently throughout the current
financial year and the prior financial year, are described below.

Accounting convention

Mitel Europe Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006 and is registered in England and Wales. The address of the company’s registered office
is shown on page 1.

The principal activities of the company and the nature of the company’s operations are set out in the Strategic
Report.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with FRS
102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”).

The functional currency of Mitel Europe Limited is considered to be pounds sterling because that is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates.

Exemptions

The company has taken advantage of the following exemptions available under FRS 102 as equivalent
disclosures have been given in the consolidated financial statements of MLN TopCo Limited which include
the results of Mitel Europe Limited:

. the exemption from preparing a statement of cash flows;

. the exemption from disclosing key management personnel compensation;
. the exemption from certain financial instrument disclosures;

. the exemption from disclosing share-based payment information; and

. the exemption from disclosing related party transactions.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 and
not produced consolidated financial statements as, at 31 December 2019, it was itself a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MLN TopCo Limited. The financial statements therefore present information about the company
as an individual undertaking and not about its group.

Copies of the consolidated financial statements of MLN TopCo Limited will be filed along with these financial
statements.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements,
In reaching this conclusion the directors have assessed both the impact of COVID-19 on the business as well
as the financial position and performance of the business below.

COVID-19

The worldwide spread of COVID-19 has resulted in authorities implementing numerous measures to contain
the virus, including travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, social and physical distancing, and business
limitations and shutdowns. The COVID-19 pandemic has created a global slowdown of economic activity,
which has, and will likely continue to decrease demand for a broad variety of goods and services, while also
disrupting sales channels and marketing activities until the disease is contained. As at the date of this report,
the directors and management do not consider the COVID-19 pandemic to have had a material effect on the
company’s financial position given that Mitel Europe Limited operates as a holding company for the EMEA
region within the Mitel group of companies and its trading activity is limited to charging management fees to
its subsidiary holdings for services provided.

13



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Going concern (continued)
COVID-19 (continued)

At 31 December 2019, the company held net current assets of £6,002,000, consisting largely of current
intercompany receivables of £15,903,000, cash at bank of £242,000 and current intercompany payables of
£8,466,000. The company generated a loss in the year of £116,000 which is the result of a £1,880,000
impairment being charged to the income statement. The company has limited financial obligations outside the
Mitel Group and revenue is generated through management fees for services provided to its subsidiary
companies at a contracted operating margin percentage.

In assessing the going concern position of Mitel Europe Limited the directors have assessed the consolidated
performance of the Mitel Group at the Mitel Networks (International) Limited consolidation level, as the
company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Mitel Networks (International) Limited, and is reliant on the
performance of the wider group to enable it to continue to generate management fee income.

The directors and management have considered all the available information including reviewing the
consolidated group forecasts for a period of twelve months from the date of signing the financial statements
and have no reason to believe that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt over the ability
of the Mitel group to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from
the date of approval of the financial statements and, therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the report and accounts.

Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

Impairment of fixed asset investments

An asset is impaired when the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the group’s weighted average
cost of capital, is less than the asset’s carrying value.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the prior impairment loss is tested to determine reversal. An
impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired asset to the extent that the revised recoverable value
does not lead to a revised carrying amount higher than the carrying value had no impairment been recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in the balance sheet when, and only when, there exists a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability separately.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, foans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.

14



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of the financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, or the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Turnover

Turnover consists of management fees for services to its subsidiary companies. Tumover is recognised in the
period in which the services are provided.

Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Taxation (continued)

Deferred taxation is provided in full on timing differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date
to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based
on current tax rates and law. Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure
in taxation computations in periods different from those in which they are included in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that they will be
recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Share-based payments
The company has applied the requirements of FRS 102 Section 26 relating to share-based payment transactions.

Certain employees receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, being share options in parent
company, MLN TopCo Limited. Options granted under the plan are generally granted for a fixed number of
shares with an exercise price at least equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant and have a
term of ten years.

The expense for equity-settled share-based payments is based on the fair value estimate made on the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for each award and is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the employee service period, which is the vesting period. The company estimates the volatility of its stock for
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using historical volatility of the company’s stock. As the options are
over shares in MLN TopCo Limited and equity settled, a capital contribution is also recorded.

Forfeitures are accounted for as they cccur, through reversal of the previously recognized expense on the
awards that were forfeited during the year.

15



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the company’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with
separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Valuation of investments

The company carries out an annual impairment review of its investments. When assessing the valuation, the
directors consider the past and budgeted future performance of the underlying entity. The directors use certain
assumptions about its future performance, for example, the growth of the business and profitability. Estimates
are also made in determining the group’s weighted average cost of capital.

Key source of estimation uncertainty
Management do not consider there to be any key areas involving estimation uncertainty.

TURNOVER

Turnover relates to one class of business and arises in the United Kingdom. Analysis of turnover by destination
is stated below:

2019 2018
£000 £'000
United Kingdom 2,361 1,550
Rest of Europe 4,142 2,864
6,503 4414
All of the company’s tumover is derived from the rendering of services.
NET FINANCE INCOME
2019 2018
£'000 £000
Interest payable on loan note 21 21
Interest receivable on loan note (2,049) (172)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 842 (578)
Other finance (income)/costs 1) 1
(1,187) (728)

16



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

S. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

2019 2018
£000 £'000
Employee costs (including directors’ emoluments) :
Wages and salaries 3,733 2,588
Social security costs 490 322
Other pension costs 148 94
Share-based payments - 102
4,371 3,106
The average monthly number of employees during the year was made up as follows:
No. No.
Support 17 14
£'000 £'000
Directors’ remuneration
Emoluments 644 448
Company contributions to money purchase pension
scheme 21 20
665 468
No. No.
The number of directors who:
Are members of a money purchase pension scheme 3 3
Exercised options over shares - 2
Had awards receivable in the form of shares under a
long-term incentive scheme - 3
£'000 £'000
Amounts in respect of the highest paid director
Emoluments 273 175
Company contributions to money purchase pension
scheme 9 7
282 182

G J Hiscock is remunerated by other group companies for his services to the group as a whole. It is not
practicable to allocate his remuneration between services to the company and to the group.

17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

This is stated after charging/(crediting)
Auditor’s remuneration:
- Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their
associates for the audit of the company’s accounts
Foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Impairment of fixed asset investments

7. TAX ON (LOSS)/PROFIT

Current tax on (loss)/profit

United Kingdom corporation tax:
Current tax on income for the year
Adjustment in respect of prior periods

Total current tax
Deferred tax
Deferred tax (Note 11)

Total tax on (loss)/profit

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

2019 2018
£'000 £000
9 6
842 (578)
1,880 1,284
2019 2018
£000 £000
- 114
188 82
188 196
. 2
188 198

The difference between the total tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the blended rate of

UK corporation tax to the loss before tax is as follows:

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax on (loss)/profit at standard UK corporation tax
rate of 19% (2018 - 19%)

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Group relief

Adjustment in respect of prior period

Total tax expense for the year

£'000 £000
(304) 8,414
(58) 1,599
329 (1,483)
271) -
(188) 82
(188) 198

18



MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

8. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Subsidiary
companies
£'000
Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 2019 265,550
Provisions for impairment
At 1 January 2019 116,731
Provision for impairment 1,880
At 31 December 2019 118,611
Net book value
At 31 December 2019 146,939
At 31 December 2018 148,819

]

A provision for impairment has been recognised against one of the company’s investments as a result of a
review of the business of the subsidiary.

The company has investments in the following subsidiary undertakings:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

8.

Mitel Networks Holdings Limited

Aastra Telecom (UK) Limited

Mitel Netherlands BV (c¢)

Mitel Schweiz AG

Aastra Telecom Europe A/S
Mitel Denmark A/S
Mitel France SAS

Mitel Italia SpA

Mitel Communications Finland Oy

Mitel Norway AS
Mitel Lease SA (a)
Mitel Belgium SA (a)
Mitel Austria GmbH

Aastra Telecom Portugal SA

Mitel Networks Limited (b)
Mitel Spain SL

Telepo Limited

Connected Hotels Limited
Connected Guests Limited (b)
TigerTMS Limited (b)

ShoreTel UK Limited

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

Registered office
Castlegate Business Park,
Portskewett. NP26 SYR UK
Castlegate Business Park,
Portskewett. NP26 SYR UK
Van Deventerlaan 30-40,
3528 AE Utrecht,
Netherlands
Zieglemattstrasse 1,
CH-4503 Solothurn,
Switzerland
Roskildevej 342 B, 2, DK-
2630 Taastrup, Denmark
Roskildevej 342 B, 2. DK-
2630 Taastrup, Denmark
Rue Amold Schoenberg 1,
78286 Guyancourt, France
Corso di Porta Vittoria 9,
Milan, Italy
Tekniikantie 14 (Innopoli
1I) 02150 Espoo, Finland
Ostensjoveien 39/41,
0667 Oslo, Norway
Rue de la Grenouillette 2b,
1130 Brussels, Belgium
Telecomlaan 9 bus 2,
1831 Diegem, Belgium
Schénbrunner Str. 218/6.02,
1120 Vienna, Austria
Praca de Alvalade, Edif.
Alvalade, n° 6 — 3° Esq.
1700-036 Lisbon, Portugal
Castlegate Business Park,
Portskewett. NP26 SYR UK
C/Capitén Haya 1, pl 17
28020 Madrid, Spain
Suite 1, 3™ Floor 11-12 St.
James’s Square, London
SW1Y 4LB UK
5 New Street Square,
London EC4A 3TW UK
5 New Street Square,
London EC4A 3TW UK
77-79 Christchurch Road,
Ringwood BH24 I1DH UK
Inspired South Office Suite,
Easthampstead Road,
Bracknell RG12 1YQ UK

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

Principal activity
Holding company

Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Holding company
Telecommunications
Telecommunications
Telecommunications
Telecommunications
Telecommunications

Leasing
Telecommunications
Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Telecommunications
Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Telecommunications
Telecommunications
Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Holding
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
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100
100

100

100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100

100
100

100

100
100
100

100



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

8. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)
Registered office Principal activity Holding %
Mitel Networks Middle East FZ-LLC Dubai Intemet City  Telecommunications Ordinary shares 100
Freezone Building 17,
Office 263, PO Box 500193
Dubai
Mitel Communications 2nd Floor, A-Wing, Plot no. Telecommunications Ordinary shares 99
Private Limited 19/4 & 27 Kadubisanahalli
village, Varthur Hobli,
Bangalore, Bangalore
Kamnataka, India 560103
Mitel Czech Republic s.r.o. Ha3talskd 1072/6, Telecommunications Ordinary shares 100
110 00 Prague 1 - Staré
Mésto, Czech Republic
Mitel Networks Castlegate Business Park, Pension trustees Ordinary shares 100
Pension Trustee Co. Ltd (b) Portskewett. NP26 SYR UK
(a) Mitel Networks Corporation, the parent company of Mitel Europe Limited, owns less than 1% of these
entities.
(b) These subsidiaries are held indirectly by the company.
(c) Mitel Netherlands BV is owned 92% directly and 8% indirectly.
9. DEBTORS DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amount owed by parent undertaking due after more than one year 24,930 25,804
Amounts owed by parent undertakings due after one year are unsecured with a maturity date of 30 November
2025, bearing interest at 8% per annum.
10. DEBTORS DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2019 2018
£'000 £°000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 15,903 16,729
Other debtors - 1
Deferred taxation asset (note 11) 3 3
Corporation tax 129 -
Prepayments 457 -

16,492 16,733

Amounts owed by group undertakings due within one year are interest free, unsecured and repayable on
demand.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

11.

12.

13.

DEFERRED TAXATION ASSET

The movement in deferred taxation is as follows:

£'000
At 1 January 2019 3)
Charge to profit and loss account (note 7) -
At 31 December 2019 3
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Charge/(credit) to the profit and loss account (note 7) - 2
The amounts of deferred taxation provided in the financial statements are as follows:
£'000 £'000
Other timing differences 3) 3)
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Trade creditors 494 -
Amounts owed to group undertakings 8,466 11,064
Other taxation and social security 35 160
Corporation tax - 88
Accruals 1,737 2,889
10,732 14,201
Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
2019 2018
£'000 £000
Amounts owed to group undertakings 11,798 11,472

£2,151,000 of amounts owed to group undertakings carries an interest rate of 0.98%. The remainder of amounts

owed are interest-free. All amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

14.

15.

16.

17.

CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL
Allotted, called-up and

fully-paid
Ordinary share of £1 each No. £'000
At 1 January 2019 and 31 4Deoember 2019 2,006 2

The share premium reserve represents the difference between the par value of the shares issued and the
subscription or issue price. On 12 July 2016, the company reduced its share premium account by £265,000,000
by way of a capital reduction.

The profit and loss reserve represents cumulative profits or losses net of dividends paid and other adjustments.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Certain employees receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, being share options in parent
company, MLN TopCo Limited. The required disclosures are included in the MLN TopCo Limited
consolidated financial statements.

Options granted under the plan are generally granted for a fixed number of shares with an exercise price at
least equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant and have a term of ten years.

The expense for equity-settled share-based payments is based on the fair value estimate made on the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for each award and is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the employee service period, which is the vesting period. The company estimates the volatility of its stock for
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using historical volatility of the company’s stock.

Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur, through reversal of the previously recognized expense on the
awards that were forfeited during the year.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Due to the on-going impact of COVID-19 on post year-end trading, management deem there to be a high
probability that there may be evidence of further impairment indicators in the current year in relation to the
investment balances held at the balance sheet date. The directors are satisfied that this represents a non-
adjusting event for the year ending 3 1st December 2019, as the pandemic did not occur until post year end, and
therefore the directors could not have foreseen the impact of this at the balance sheet date.

PARENT UNDERTAKING AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

In the directors’ opinion, at 31 December 2019, the immediate parent undertaking was MLN UK Midco
Limited, a Company registered in the UK. The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Searchlight
Capital Partners II GP, LLC, a company registered in the USA.

The largest group of undertakings for which these results are consolidated is MLN TopCo Limited, a company
registered in the Cayman Islands. Its registered office address is Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman)
Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands.

Copies of the financial statements of MLN TopCo Limited will be filed at Companies House alongside these
financial statements. .
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MLN TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The directors present their Annual Report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019. Comparative figures present one month of operations — from 30 November 2018 through to 31
December 2018, therefore were not meaningful for the purpose of this report.

MLN TopCo Limited was incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on 19 April 2018.

Through the acquisition of Mitel Networks Corporation, on 30 November 2018, MLN TopCo Limited and its
subsidiaries (together “Mitel” or the “Company”) have become a global provider of Cloud and On-Site business
communications and collaboration solutions. OQur software product development enables us to help more than 70
million end users around the world, including more than a million cloud-based Unified Communications as a Service
(UCaaS) subscribers, to seamlessly connect, collaborate and provide innovative solutions to their customers. Our
global customer base leverages Mitel innovation every day in approximately 100 countries.

Mitel’s strategy is built on the principle of putting customers first and providing an exceptional customer experience.
We do that by providing a seamless technology path that will enable businesses to communicate, collaborate and
participate in the digital transformation and application economy that is reshaping business models and competition
globally.

By utilising our research and development workforce, we believe we are uniquely positioned to offer customers a
comprehensive portfolio of complementary and interoperable communications and collaborations solutions, globally.

With a global geographic footprint, we are structured around three primary geographic markets defined as the
Americas, consisting of the continents of North America and South America; EMEA, which includes the continent of
Europe, the Middle East and Africa; and Asia Pacific, which includes the continent of Asia and the Pacific region,
including Australia and New Zealand.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Mitel operates in a dynamic and highly competitive industry, with changes in both technologies and business models.
We believe that each industry shift is an opportunity to conceive new products, new technologies, or new ideas that
can further transform the industry and our business. Through a broad range of research and development activities,
we seek to identify and address the changing demands of customers, industry trends, and competitive forces.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2020, the World Health Organization (the “WHO") declared the outbreak of a novel strain of Coronavirus
disease (COVID-19) a Public Health Emergency of International Concern. In February 2020, the WHO raised the
threat level of the disease from high to very high at a global level and in March 2020, the WHO declared COVID-19
a pandemic.

Further details regarding subsequent events can be found in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.



MLN TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Key performance indicators that we use to manage our business and evaluate our financial results and operating
performance include: revenues, gross margins, operating costs, operating income, net income, cash flows from
operations, and Adjusted EBITDA.

Revenue performance is evaluated from both a segment and geographical perspective by comparing our actual results
against both management forecasts and prior period results.

Gross margin performance is evaluated from a segment perspective by comparing our actual results against both
management forecasts and prior period results.

Cash flow from operations is the key performance indicator with respect to cash flows. As part of monitoring cash
flow from operations, we also monitor our days sales outstanding, our inventory turns and our days expenses in
payables outstanding.

Adjusted EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, is evaluated by comparing actual results to management forecasts and prior
period results.

In addition to the above indicators, from time to time, we also monitor non-financial performance in the following
areas: status of key customer contracts, the achievement of expected milestones of our key R&D projects and the
achievement of our key strategic initiatives.

In an effort to ensure we are creating value for and maintaining strong relationships with our customers, we monitor
customer service levels. With respect to our R&D projects, we measure content, quality and timeliness against project
plans.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The directors have considered the principal risks and uncertainties of the company and believe them to include the
following:

Our operating results may be adversely affected by unfavourable economic and market conditions in key
markets, particularly in the United States and Europe.

Challenging economic conditions worldwide, particularly in the United States and in Europe, have, from time to time,
contributed, and may continue to “contribute, to slowdowns in the communications industry at large, as well as in
specific segments and markets in which we operate, resulting in, but not limited to:

- reduced demand for our products;

-  increased price competition for our products;

- risk of excess and obsolete inventories;

- risk of supply constraints;

- risk of manufacturing capacity;

- higher overhead costs as a percentage of revenue; and

- higher interest expense.

The global macroeconomic environment is challenging and volatile. The effect of the COVID-19 pandemic, instability
in the global credit markets, central bank monetary policies, the instability in the geopolitical environment in many
parts of the world and other disruptions, such as changes in energy costs, the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the
European Union, regulatory and policy uncertainty in the United States, and uncertainty surrounding international
trade arrangements, such as NAFTA, may adversely impact global economic conditions. If global economic and
market conditions, or economic conditions in key markets remain uncertain, we may experience material impacts on
our business, operating results, and financial condition.



MLN TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

We rely on our channel partners (which includes our wholesale distribution channel) for a significant
component of our sales and so disruptions to our partners could have a material adverse effect on our ability
to generate revenues.

Our future success is highly dependent upon establishing and maintaining successful relationships with a variety of
channel partners. A substantial portion of our revenues is derived through and dependent upon our channel partners,
most of which also sell our competitors’ products. In addition, many potential channel partners have established
relationships with our competitors and may not be willing to invest the time and resources required to train their staff
to effectively market our solutions and services. The loss of, or reduction in, sales to these channel partners could
materially reduce our revenues. Our competitors may in some cases be effective in causing our channel partners or
potential channel partners to favour their products or prevent or reduce sales of our solutions. If we fail to maintain
relationships with these channel partners, fail to develop new relationships with channel partners in new markets or
expand the number of channel partners in existing markets, fail to manage, train or provide appropriate incentives to
existing channel partners or if these channel partners are not successful in their sales efforts, sales of our solutions
may decrease and our operating results would suffer.

We face competition from many competitors.

The market for our solutions is highly competitive and subject to rapidly changing technologies. This brings a
challenging environment where we may face future competition from companies that do not currently compete in the
business communications market. This includes companies that currently compete in other sectors of the information
technology, communications or software markets, including mobile communications companies or communications
companies that serve residential customers, rather than business customers.

Existing and potential competitors may have greater financial, personnel, research, project management and other
resources derived from their brands or reputations and broader customer bases that are more well-established that
ours. As a result, these competitors may be in a stronger position to respond more effectively to potential acquisitions
and other market opportunities, new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements. Some of these
competitors may also have customer bases that are more diversified than ours and therefore may be less affected by
an economic downturn in a particular region. Competitors with greater resources may also be able to offer lower
prices, additional products or services or other incentives that we do not offer or cannot match.

Additional risks and uncertainties affecting the Company are detailed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

GOING CONCERN

These consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019, have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) which assume
that the Company will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of operations.

The directors have no reason to believe that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt about the
ability of Mitel to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and, therefore, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the report and accounts.

In January 2020, the World Health Organization (the "WHQ") declared the outbreak of a novel strain of Coronavirus
disease (“COVID-19"") a “Public Health Emergency of International Concern.” In February 2020, the WHO raised the
COVID-19 threat level from high to very high at a global level and in March 2020, the WHO characterized the
COVID-19 as a pandemic.



MLN TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

GOING CONCERN (continued)

The worldwide spread of COVID-19 has resulted in authorities implementing numerous measures to contain the virus,
including travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, shelter-in-place orders, and business limitations and shutdowns.
The COVID-19 pandemic has created a global slowdown of economic activity, which has, and will likely continue to
decrease demand for a broad variety of goods and services, while also disrupting sales channels and marketing
activities until the disease is contained. :

As of the date of this report, the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic may impact the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations remains highly uncertain. While the initial effect of the pandemic did not materially
affect the Company’s financial results, the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic may not be fully reflected in the
Company’s results of operations and overall financial performance until future periods. The extent of the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s operational and financial performance will depend on certain
developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, actions taken to contain the virus or its impact and
impact on the Company’s suppliers, customers, partners, resellers and employees, all of which are uncertain and
cannot be predicted.

The financial statements have been prepared based upon conditions existing at December 31, 2019. As the outbreak
of COVID-19 occurred after December 31, 2019, its impact is considered an event that is indicative of conditions that
arose after the reporting period and accordingly, no adjustments have been made to financial statements as at
December 31, 2019 for the impacts of COVID-19.



MLN TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The success of our business is dependent on the support of all of our stakeholders. Building positive relationships with
stakeholders that share our values is important to us and working together towards shared goals assists us in delivering
long-term sustainable success.

Reports are regularly made to the Board about the strategy, performance and key decisions taken which provides the
Board with assurance that proper consideration is given to stakeholder interests in decision-making. The Board is well
informed about the views of stakeholders through the regular reporting on stakeholder views and it uses this
information to assess the impact of decisions on each stakeholder group as part of its own decision-making process.
Details of the key stakeholders and how we engage with them are set out below.

Colleagues

Our people are key to our success and we want them to be successful individually and as a team. There are many ways
we engage with and listen to our people including a regular dialogue with employees through our intranet, email
communication, team briefings and regular meetings. Matters of current interest and concern to the business are
regularly discussed with employees at departmental, inter-department and “all employee” meetings. The company
operates various incentive and recognition schemes including bonus schemes and an annual incentive plan based on
the group’s performance.

The company actively promotes the employment of disabled people and maintains close links with disablement bodies.
When selecting candidates for employment, the company concentrates on their abilities and not their disabilities.
Employees who become disabled during their employment with the company are considered for alternative
employment where necessary and are provided with medical counselling.

Customers

Our ambition is to deliver best-in-class service to trade customers. We build strong lasting relationships with our trade
customers and spend considerable time with them to understand their needs and views and listen to how we can
improve our offer and service for them.

We regularly seek to introduce new products, features, applications and services to address the requirements of our
customers. We put the customer at the centre of everything we do. Mitel’s history of success in software-based cloud
and enterprise communications solutions has provided us with the foundation for continued innovation. In recent
years, we have increasingly invested in cloud-based R&D to support our rapidly growing cloud business. Our R&D
personnel are skilled with deep domain expertise in the diverse areas of telecommunications, IP networking, unified
communications, Contact Centre solutions software and vertical applications. We work to continuously improve our
R&D efforts through operational measurement, adoption of best practices, effective partnerships and investment in
our people.

As of December 31, 2019, we had approximately 900 employees working in our R&D department on cloud and
enterprise solutions. Our global R&D wortkforce is located predominantly in North America, Europe, and India.

Suppliers

We build strong relationships with our suppliers to develop mutually beneficial and lasting partnerships. The Board
recognises that relationships with suppliers are important to the Group’s long-term success and is briefed on supplier
feedback and issues on a regular basis.

Communities

We engage with the communities in which we operate to build trust and understand the local issues that are important
to them. Key areas of focus include how we can support local causes and issues, create opportunities to recruit and
develop local people and help to look after the environment. We partner with local charities and organisations at a site
level to raise awareness and funds. The impact of decisions on the environment both locally and nationally is
considered with such considerations as the use of and disposal of plastic and how this might be minimised.

SECTION 172 STATEMENT (continued)
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Government and regulators

We engage with the government and regulators through a range of industry consultations, meetings and conferences.
The Board is updated on legal and regulatory developments and takes these into account when considering future
actions. '

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

Director
June 29, 2020



MLN TOPCO LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their Annual Report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

ACCOUNTING PERIOD

These consolidated financial statements are for the year ended 31 December 2019. The comparative results are for the
period from 19 April 2018 to 31 December 2018. Comparative figures present one month of operations — from 30
November 2018 through to 31 December 2018, therefore were not meaningful for the purpose of this report

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid during the period (period ended 31 December 2018 - $nil) and no dividends have been paid or
proposed after the balance sheet date.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the company, who served throughout the financial period and subsequently, are as follows. .

Francois Dekker
Nicolo Zanotto

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made
during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Details of future developments can be found in the Strategic Report on page x

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant events since the balance sheet date are contained in the Strategic Report and in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Refer to s.172 report in the Strategic Report.
DISABLED EMPLOYEES

Refer to 5.172 report in the Strategic Report.

EMPLOYEE CONSULATATION
Refer to 5.172 report in the Strategic Report.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main financial risks affecting the Company are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
concentration risk. More details about these risks can be found in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.



MLN TOPCO LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

e 5o far as each of the directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor
is unaware; and

e each of the directors has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that
information.

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

irector
June 29, 2020




Ottawa ON K1P 578

5 Deloitte LLP
e o. e 100 Queen Street
' * Suite 1600

Tel: 613-236-2442
Fax: 613-236-2195
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
MLN TopCo Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MLN TopCo Ltd. (the “"Company”), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2019 and the consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2019, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2019 in accordance with United States Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (*"US GAAP"),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
(“Canadian GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with US GAAP, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:



e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, in the Strategic and
Directors’ Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We obtained the Strategic and Directors’ Report prior to the date of this auditor’s report. If, based on
the work we have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact in this auditor’s report. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Qb 1P

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
Ottawa, Ontario

June 29, 2020



MLN TopCo Ltd.
: (incorporated on April 19, 2018)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in U.S. dollars, millions)
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash QUIVAIENLS ...........ccoeverreeiieertrriceeceteeeeeesee s et saesesesseseeseesaesense e enssassnesnssenasses $ 266 $ 56.0
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $11.1 and $11.5).........cccoeveueee 156.4 200.0
TIVEIEOTIES ...cuveurererverreererreieserereseseessaresneseeseeseeseatsstsaeserenesesstsstsaessortsresatstosssussnessssnsnsorsssssesssssesnans 67.6 68.3
Other current assets (NOTE 4)........ccverereereeeririeeerrir e st eereee et eeres e estese st e stosesstsessoresaassnesassnses 61.8 81.4
3124 405.7
Deferred tax aSSet (TIOLE 15) .....ccccivuerrireentererrirrerseteteceteet et et et sessesbssesseessstosesiestssssstossssesssressessensssans 43.8 28.8
Property and equipment (Det) (MOLE 5) ......cccrurerreinmniniiriicinrinrcirc it 55.6 45.7
Operating lease right-0f-USE @SSELS .....c.coevevererierinieririeririier e st seene e 71.7 0.0
Identifiable intangible assets (NEt) (MOLE 6) ........cocieiririiniiniiiiiiiiiiii e e enens 1,119.2 1,306.0
GOOAWILL (IOLE 7)...vcvrueririnreririercreere st eeeseet e tn b e e bosestsbsses s b s s bbb s bbb a s sae b e b aneasaees 802.5 802.5
Other non-current assets (NOLE 8)........coceueiirinriniiniiiiiiici et bbb st et erseae 50.8 21.0

$ 24620 $ 2,609.7

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (NOt€ 9) .......cccccvevvriniiiininiiniiii e $ 2294 § 2784
Current portion of deferred rEVENUE ...........c.ccceciriiviiiiniiiiiii s 131.7 114.7
Current portion of operating lease Liabilities ...........cccovvvrimnrennnininiiie 224 0.0
Current portion of long-term debt (ot 10)........ccccovrmiireniiniiiniciiicic e 12.6 13.7
396.1 406.8
Non-current portion of deferred TEVENUE ..........ccccccevevceriiininiininiiii e eae e 41.3 40.9
Non-current portion of operating lease liabilities ............ccvniiininiiiininininii e 72.8 0.0
Long-term debt (MOt 10) ....cc.cceeurerieririeniieiiiieteretetnentie et s s st sssbesessssssbsben s st s ssssassasaenes 1,364.7 1,319.6
Deferred tax lability (NOLE 15)......ccceeirerereniiereerenesrerieereeeceseresnests e esaessssisassssssssesassassessssaesssnnaves 598 86.9
Pension Hability (OLE 16)............cvurververrereseesesreessessesssesseessesssesssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssnsssnssssssesssesas 74.3 96.1
Other non-current HabilIIes .........cocoetriirierierieierieeieceecre ettt et bes s sasbene 58.6 49.3
2,067.6 1,999.6
Commitments, ‘guarantees and contingencies (note 11)
Shareholders’ equity:
Ordinary share capital (outstanding: 134.7 and 134.5 million) and additional paid-in capital —

(BOLE 12)..ucuiuirereeeererienteire ettt s et et R e e R e r e e bbbt b e R RS e b eb et ne 675.9 672.6
Accumulated defiCit ........covereerreeiiiireirreccte e b b en (260.1) (45.7)
Accumulated other COMPrehensive 10SS ........ccoivuiiiieinininiiic e 21.9) (16.8)

' 394.4 610.1

$ 24620 3 2,609.7

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)



N MLN TopCo Ltd.
(incorporated on April 19, 2018)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in U.S. dollars, millions)

Twelve-Month Eight-Month
Period Ended’ Period Ended
December 31, December 31,

' 2019 2018
REVEIUES.......cveereerirreereresiiseensseesestasessessessessessessssesessessesseeseesscssensensssesasseranssesenessesneres $ 11,0675 § 125.6
COSt OF TEVEIIUES .....eeuerrereerireneeninrrereeseeesesae s estestobesbessessonnsrestasssrssressassssssnsanssssassns 421.8 49.5
GTOSS MATGIML......eoeierereereresieceseerrcs e esesseesetesesstestesssesesssesaesssestsssissessesasssnesessssssasssons 645.7 76.1
Expenses:

Selling, general and adminiStrative ............ccoovvereerienreerenneenensn st sreeeeseeseeeees 3979 - 340
Research and development............ccccueveveerencieniinicnicnennnnni s 124.5 13.2
Restructuring, integration and acquisition-related costs (note 13).........cccccceuce. 48.8 43.6
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets .........c..coccvrveririceniinennenn, 187.2 15.6
758.4 106.4
OPETAtiNg LOSS ...coueeueeueeeeercrertrcnecet ettt s s sbesae bbb s ea s sr e s (112.7m (30.3)
INLEIESt EXPEIISE ...veuveuerreerreeeercrerecrerreerersaesesstsssstesessesatssssasesansssssssssassassnssssssssessosesnesns (122.8) (10.2)
Loss on interest rate SWap (BOt€ 17) .....ccccoevevcriiniiiniiniininiiiinine s eeseeaessesens — (10.9)
Other INCOME (EXPEINSE) ...eeruererereecereteriercrreracrscsessiressisssssessssessesmsssssessssssssssssssesassseses .1 0.1)
L05S DEfOTE INCOMIE TAXES.......cvcurreerreeeierereeerereasseresssenssesensacncaeseseeerestsatseasaensssassessasoens (242.6) (51.5)
Current income tax recovery (expense) (DOte 15).......ccceveevrveiivivinniinninnniiinennnnns 3.7 1.6
Deferred income tax recovery (expense) (DOt 15)......ccccvcveveevurreeceienirnerenienncrsenneeneene 36.9 54
INELL0SS ...vrviereeieeeeee e e ree s ersese s te e eseesseseesee b s e sene s e e e sassae b beb obassbab b be b e e s e st s e $ 2144) $ (44.5)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)



. MLN TopCo Ltd.
(incorporated on April 19, 2018)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in U.S. dollars, millions)

Twelve-Month Eight-Month
Period Ended Period Ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
INEEL0SS .ovvveveeereerrereenersrencstasaassnsssesessesesssseseenteesentsessosestsneneesessessessesenentesasesensrenssseses $ 2144) $ (44.5)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments........c.coocoevveveiiiiinnesneinsnnsnnesisnesnnns 34 0.1
Pension liability adjustments, net of tax recovery (expense) of ($1.3) and $0.4
(DOLE 16) ...ttt st ere et ce et st sn e sra st ss e e s mena et et enseraes 11.6 ;1)
Change in fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, net of tax
recovery 0f $6.7 and $4.2 (N0te 17)...ccccevcrieiiriiiiininncnenecccne e (19.6) (11.8)
(4.6) (16.8)
COMPTERENSIVE LOSS .ocenvvivrireierieeeeeeeceietetieeeseses s ecreeresastsesese s ssesesesenassererassonens $ (219.0) $ (61.3)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)



MLN TopCo Ltd.
(incorporated on April 19, 2018)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in U.S. dollars, millions)

Common
Shares and Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholders’
Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Equity
Issuance of shares (note 12).................... 672.6 — — 3 672.6
Distribution (note 12)..........cceceeereenucnnee — (1.2) — (1.2)
Comprehensive income (10sS) ................. — (44.5) (16.8) (61.3)
Balance at December 31, 2018.............. $ 6726 § 457) $ (16.8) $ 610.1
Issuance of shares (note 12).................... 0.8 - — 3 0.8
Stock-based compensation (note 12) ...... 25 — — 2.5
Comprehensive income (loss) ................. — (214.49) (4.6) (219.0)
Balance at December 31, 2019.............. $ 6759 $ (260.1) $ 214) $ 394.4

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)



N MLN TopCo Ltd.
(incorporated on April 19, 2018)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in U.S. dollars, millions)

Twelve-Month Eight-Month
Period Ended Period Ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
Operating activities:
NEELOSS..evevrreretiereereeeeestestreresreneenesesseeseseressesssestssssssssrerssasinstssnssesserersanenons $ 21449) § (44.5)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization and depreciation.............cocevreiriinicninninnineeeeeens 216.6 18.0
Stock-based COMPENSAON. ........cccourviirevririniiiiiiriceree e 2.5 —
Deferred income tax eXpense (TECOVETY) .....covuinrimriniernsiniisisessesressernesennes (36.9) 54
Amortization of debt iSSUE COStS........ocvvvreriniiiiiniiniiiie e 5.8 0.8
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap derivative (note 17) .......cccovcevvnvne — 10.9
Non-cash movements in PrOVISIONS ........ccocceverrisreniirenseseneersrinsersesseseenns 35 0.1
Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities, net (note 14)............cc....... 17.6) (56.2)
Net cash used in operating activities. ..........cceevrereinierirninninsnineresesset e sans (40.5) ‘ (76.3)
Investing activities:
Additions to property, equipment and identifiable intangible assets................... (23.6) (1.5)
Acquisition, net of cash and restricted cash acquired (note 3) ...........cccceeurunnee. — (1,862.9)
Net cash used in INVESHNG ACHVItIES .......cvoruerevereerermeereeeeererseeriesenseieiseensesessssssassnsons (23.6) (1,864.4)
Financing activities:
Repayments of the first lien term 10an ... (11.2) —
Borrowings under the revolving credit facility .........ccoocveeiiienncininniniiiine 171.0 —
Repayments of the revolving credit facility .........ccooemeeneiienniinieieee (123.0) —
Repayment of finance lease liabilities and other long-term debt ........................ 2.5) 04
Proceeds from issuance of common shares (note 12).........ccoovivevnrirenennnennenn, 0.8 672.6
Borrowings under the credit facilities, first lien and second lien term loans
(DOLE 10) ..eoeecrecteeteresaer s eeesassaesse sttt sase et sactes b sae s bbb bsasns — 1,380.0
Payment of debt issue costs and other debt costs (note 10).......ccccoevriernennnnene — (54.1)
Net cash provided by financing activities ..........coeeevieeninrereeinnniennccn e 351 1,998.1
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash............ (0.5) —
Increase (decrease) in cash equivalents and restricted cash.........cccocerveeneenrinenieennne. (29.5) 574
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period............cccovvuenene. 57.4 —
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period........ccccccovennninenincan, 27.9 574
Less: restricted cash, end of period.........c.cocceivivininnnininnniiiniie e (1.3) 1.4)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ...t $ 266 § 56.0

(Note 14 contains supplemental cash flow information)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)



MLN TopCo Ltd.
(incorporated on April 19, 2018)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
d (in U.S. dollars, millions, except for share amounts)

1. BACKGROUND AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

MLN TopCo Ltd. was incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on April 19, 2018. On November 30, 2018, MLN
TopCo Ltd. and its subsidiaries (together “Mitel” or the “Company”) acquired Mitel Networks Corporation, a global provider of
unified communication hardware, software and services, through direct, indirect and distribution channels, as described in note 3.

The Company elected for its fiscal year to be a calendar year. As a result, the Company’s initial reporting period was the period
from incorporation through to December 31, 2018. References to the period ended December 31, 2018 refer to the period from April
19, 2018 to December 31, 2018, which include the operations of Mitel Networks Corporation only from the date of acquisition.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of Presentation

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).

b) Basis of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and of its subsidiary companies. Intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

¢) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.

Estimates and assumptions are used for, but not limited to, the determination of the fair values of assets and liabilities acquired
through acquisitions, the fair value of investments, allowance for doubtful accounts, net realizable value of inventory, goodwill
impairment assessments, estimated useful lives of property, equipment and intangible assets, accruals, warranty costs, sales rebates
and returns, pension liability, contingencies, restructuring, integration and acquisition-related costs, income taxes, the determination of
the incremental borrowing rate and lease term for operating leases, and the amortization period of contract assets, as well as certain
estimates related to revenue recognition, as described in note 2(e). Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects
of revisions are reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements in the period that they are determined. Actual results and outcomes
could differ from these estimates.

d) Foreign Currency Translation

The parent company’s functional currency is the U.S. dollar and the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are
prepared with the U.S. dollar as the reporting currency. Assets and liabilities of foreign operations with a functional currency other
than the U.S. dollar are translated from foreign currencies into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date
while revenue and expense items are translated at the average exchange rate for the period. The resulting unrealized gains and losses
are included as part of the cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment that is reported as part of other comprehensive income
(loss).

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies foreign to the functional currency of each entity are translated into the
functional currency using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. All non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
exchange rates prevailing at the date the assets were acquired, or the liabilities incurred. Revenue and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rate for the period. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the translation of these accounts are
included in the determination of net income for the period. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recorded a foreign
exchange loss of $6.9, which is included in other income (expense) on the consolidated statement of operations (period ended
December 31, 2018 — foreign exchange gain of $0.6).



e) Revenue Recognition and Contract Costs
Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenues primarily from the sale of unified communications systems and related services (collectively,
a “Solution”). A typical Solution consists of a combination of IP phones, switches, software applications and support. A Solution may
be deployed on the customer’s premise (a unified communications or “UC” Solution) or deployed in a cloud environment and billed
on a monthly basis (a unified-communications-as-a-service or “UCaaS” Solution).

UC Solution Revenue
The Company sells UC Solutions primarily through channel partners and distributors.

For revenue generated through channel partners, a typical sale is supported by a customer contract, based on standard Mitel
terms and conditions. The contract contains a standard discount against a list price for products and services and generally includes
limited rebates and rights of return. As such, the transaction price for a sale to a channel partner is based on the standard pricing
provided under the contract.

For revenue generated through distributors, a typical sale is supported by a customer contract, either based on standard Mitel
terms and conditions or, in certain cases, a negotiated set of terms and conditions. A typical contract contains a standard discount
against a list price for products and services and generally includes rebates as well as stock rotation or other return rights. To
determine the transaction price for a sale to a distributor, the Company considers the up-front sale price at standard pricing, less
estimates for rebates and returns. Estimates for rebates and returns are based on the Company’s historical experience for such
programs.

Payment terms for sales to channel partners generally range from 30 to 90 days. Payment terms for sales to distributors
generally range from 30 to 60 days.

A typical UC Solution consists of the following:

e  An IP-based unified communications platform, which consists of software, either embedded in hardware that the
Company sells, or operating on hardware provided by the customer

e IP-based devices, including wired or wireless desktop phones
e  Additional value-added software applications, which operate with our platforms

e Post-contract support, which includes software assurance (software support as well as when and if available
upgrades)

The Company considers each of the above to be a distinct good or service and as such, accounts for each as a separate
performance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each of the performance obligations based on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. As most sales are completed with standard discounting against a list price, the relative stand-alone selling
price generally consists of the list price less a standard discount.

The Company recognizes revenue for performance obligations as follows:

Product Revenue — Hardware and Software

The Company recognizes hardware (platforms and devices) and software revenue when control of the product has transferred to
the customer. Control is considered transferred generally when the customer has the risk and rewards of ownership of the product,
which for hardware, is generally when the hardware is shipped by Mitel and for software, when the software has been provided or
otherwise made available to the customer.

Post-Contract Support

Post-contract support consists primarily of software assurance revenue where the Company provides software upgrades on a
when and if available basis and software support for a fixed annual fee under contracts that range from one to five years. Revenue
from post-contract support is recognized ratably over the contractual period as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits over time.

UCaaS Solution Revenue



The Company primarily sells UCaa$S solutions directly to end customers under a monthly recurring billing model. A typical
UCaaS Sdlution is sold under standard Mitel terms and conditions, which include a fixed monthly payment, under 30-day payment
terms, for services over an initial term of three years. UCaa$ solutions consist of:

o  The right to use an IP-based unified communications platform and additional value-added software applications hosted
by Mitel over the term of the contract

e  The right to use IP-based devices over the term of the contract
o  Technical support over the term of the contract
e Voice and data telecommunication services.

The Company does not consider these performance obligations distinct in the context of the contract with the customer as the
customer views the contract as being provided a single monthly unified communications service. As a result, the Company has
grouped the goods and services together as a single performance obligation and considers the performance obligation to be fulfilled
over the life of the contract. Revenue is then recognized ratably as monthly services are being provided as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits over time.

Federal Universal Service Fund and other regulatory fees are assessed by various governmental authorities in connection with
the services the Company provides to customers and are included in cost of revenues in the consolidated statements of operations. In
many cases, the Company will separately bill and collect these regulatory fees from customers, as allowed by the governmental
authorities, and these are recorded in revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

Disaggregation of revenues

The Company’s revenues are earned as follows:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
UC — Products ........c.cerevreeerneeerncenneeeresreseeseeneeseanesenns $ 527.6 $ 74.2
UC = SErvicest ....vverererteeee e easae e essesssenes 247.0 26.4
UCAaS ...t st e eee e seessarresnnes 292.9 25.0
$ 1,067.5 $ 125.6

(1) Included in UC services for the year ended December 31, 2019 is $29.7 of adjustments relating to purchase accounting (period
ended December 31, 2018 — $4.1). In accordance with the fair value provisions applicable to the accounting for business
combinations, acquired deferred revenue relating to acquisitions is recorded on the opening balance sheet of the acquired
company at an amount that is generally lower than the historical carrying value. Although this purchase accounting requirement
has no impact on the Company’s business or cash flow, it results in a deferred revenue balance lower than historical book value
and adversely impacts the Company’s revenue in the reporting periods following the acquisition.

The Company has disaggregated its revenues based on the nature of the revenue streams. This disaggregation is consistent with
how the Company’s chief operating decision maker, its CEO, regularly reviews the financial performance of the Company. UC
product revenue consists of hardware and software and is recognized at the point in time when control has passed to the customer, as
described above. UC service revenue is recorded over time as the service is provided. UCaaS revenue, which consists of services
provided under a monthly, recurring billing model, is recognized over time.

Significant estimates and judgments relating to revenue recognition

For the UCaaS business, the Company estimates the total contract period based on historical experience. Any initial discount,
rebate or free period is considered as the Company estimates the total transaction price of the contract.

For the UC business, in determining the estimated total transaction price, the Company estimates levels of rebates and returns
(including stock rotation) based on the Company’s historical experience. In cases where the Company enters into a significant new
customer or distributor agreement, significant judgment may be required to estimate rebate and return levels based on the Company’s
historical experience with customers and distributors with similar terms. In addition, when allocating the total transaction price
amongst performance obligations, the company estimates the relative selling price of the performance obligations based on its
historical experience. While this area may require some judgment, in most cases the performance obligations of a contract are satisfied
in the same reporting period, with the exception of post-contract support, which is generally less than 10% of the total contract price.



Contract Costs

« The Company defers incremental costs to obtain as well as incremental costs to fulfill a contract with a customer for both UC
Solutions and UCaa$ Solutions, provided the incremental costs are expected to be recovered. These costs are amortized as the related
revenue is recognized. The Company has elected to apply a practical expedient under the guidance and expenses costs to obtain a
contract as incurred if the amortization period would have been one year or less. Unamortized deferred contract costs are recorded as
other non-current assets in the consolidated balance sheets and totaled $39.9 at December 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 — $8.6).

UC Solution contract costs

For UC Solution contracts, the Company’s incremental costs to obtain the customer contracts consist primarily of commissions
to the Company’s internal salesforce, where the commissions were incurred directly as the result of sales achieved. Incremental costs
to obtain the contract are generally incurred in the same period as the performance obligation is satisfied, with the exception of post-
contract support. As a result, the Company defers incremental contract costs allocated to post-contract support and amortizes the costs
over the period of post-contract support.

For UC Solution contracts, costs to fulfill are generally discrete for each performance obligation and incurred in the same period
as the related performance obligation is satisfied. As a result, the Company has not deferred any costs to fulfill relating to UC Solution
contracts.

UCaaS Solution contract costs

For UCaaS$ Solution contracts, the Company’s incremental costs to obtain the customer contracts consist of commissions to the
Company’s internal salesforce, where the commissions were incurred directly as the result of sales achieved, as well as incentives paid
to external agents for obtaining contracts. For UCaa$S Solution contracts, costs to fulfill generally consist of customer activation costs.
The Company defers both incremental contract costs and costs to fulfill for UCaaS Solution contracts and amortizes the costs over the
estimated term of the contract, plus any expected renewal periods.

Balance sheet accounts relating to contracts with customers

The Company’s significant balance sheet accounts relating to contracts with customers are as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE........ceeeceeerieecreeteereeieereeeesiesreresssessnesassnesaeseenes $ 1564 § 200.0
Contract assets included in other current assets.........cc.cceeveevvvrceennenne 7.9 8.6
Contract assets included in other non-current assets ............ccceeuneee. 39.9 8.6
Current portion of deferred revenue .............cccovevvimnceciiinininiinnns 131.7 114.7
Non-current portion of deferred revenue...........ccocevrvevercnencnennnnns 41.3 40.9

The increase in contract assets during 2019 is due to the deferral of incremental costs to obtain and fulfill contracts since the
acquisition, as described in note 3. The increase in deferred revenue is due to the effect of purchase accounting on the deferred
revenue balances, as described in the note to the disaggregation of revenue table above.

Remaining Performance Obligations

The aggregate amount of total transaction price allocated to performance obligations in contracts existing as of the balance
sheet date, which are wholly or partially unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period, and the expected time frame for
satisfaction of those wholly or partially unsatisfied performance obligations, are as follows (in millions):

2020 iuieeeceirieeerereerreeress e s ere e e etteseasrassnesneseneneennan $ 131.7
2021 ceeeiieeeeeieeereeer oo esseesae e e es e sre e aesbesssenseneen 25.6
2022ttt es e eiseesae s te s esaressaassaesesaeseseneees 10.5
2023 ...ttt et seesrensnesaesenenasanen kX
2024 and thereafler........ccocoveerveevcerveieeecieererereeeeneen 1.4

Deferred revenue, December 31, 2019..........ccveeneeeen. $ 173.0




The Company recognized $114.7 of revenue during the year that related to contract liabilities included in the opening balance
of the current portion of deferred revenue.

P Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that have terms to maturity of three months or less at the time of
acquisition, and generally consist of cash on hand and investment-grade marketable securities. Cash equivalents are carried at
amortized cost, which approximates their fair value. At December 31, 2019, the Company had cash of $25.0 and cash equivalents of
$1.6 (December 31, 2018 — cash of $54.9 and cash equivalents of $1.1).

8) Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents cash provided to support letters of credit outstanding and to support certain of the Company’s credit
facilities or other obligations. Restricted cash is presented within other current assets on the consolidated balance sheets.

h) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts represents the Company’s best estimate of probable losses that may result from the
inability of its customers to make required payments. Reserves are established and maintained against estimated losses based upon
historical loss experience, past due accounts, and specific account analysis. The Company regularly reviews the level of allowances
for doubtful accounts and adjusts the level of allowances as needed. Consideration is given to accounts past due as well as other risks
in the current portion of the accounts. If there is a deterioration of a major customer’s creditworthiness or actual defaults are higher
than historical experience, the estimate of the recoverability of amounts due could be adversely affected.

i) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (calculated on a first-in, first-out basis, which is approximated by standard cost) and
net realizable value. Inventory is written down for estimated obsolescence equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and
the net realizable value, based upon an aging analysis of the inventory on hand, specific known inventory-related risks and
assumptions about future demand. Substantially all inventory consists of finished goods, primarily manufactured by contract
manufacturers.

Jj) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the anticipated useful
lives of the assets. Estimated lives range from two to ten years for equipment. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed
using the shorter of the remaining lease term or the useful life of the asset, generally five years.

The Company performs reviews for the impairment of property and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. In assessing the impairment, the Company compares projected
undiscounted net cash flows associated with the related asset or group of assets over their estimated remaining useful life against their
carrying amounts. If the projected undiscounted net cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of the assets, the assets
are written down to their estimated fair values based on expected discounted cash flows. Changes in the estimates and assumptions
used in assessing projected cash flows could materially affect the results of management’s evaluation. :

Assets leased on terms that transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership to the Company are accounted for as
finance leases, as though the asset had been purchased outright and a liability incurred. All other leases are accounted for as operating
leases, as described in note 2(u).

k) Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets include patents, trademarks, customer relationships and acquired technology. Amortization is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Company evaluates intangible assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability is assessed
based on the carrying value of the asset and the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and the eventual disposal of
the asset. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount is not recoverable.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of net tangible and intangible assets acquired
in business combinations. Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to annual impairment tests, or more frequently if circumstances
indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is below its carrying amount. The Company performs its
annual goodwill impairment test on October 1 of each year.



1) Derivative Financial Instruments

» The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to manage the impact of currency fluctuations on foreign currency
receivables and payables (fair value hedges). The Company also hedges cash flows by entering into interest rate swap agreements to
manage the impact of interest rate changes on a portion of its forecasted interest payments on its variable rate debt (cash flow hedges).

For derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting (cash flow hedges), gains or losses for the effective portion of the
hedge are initially reported as a separate component of other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently recorded in income when
the hedged item affects income or when the hedge is no longer deemed effective.

For fair value hedges and other derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting, the derivative instrument is
recorded at fair market value, with subsequent changes in fair market value recorded in other income (expense) during the period of
change. :

m) Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Under this approach, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities, and are measured using
enacted tax rates and laws. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is more likely than not that the future tax assets
will be realized in the future.

The Company calculates certain tax liabilities based on the likely outcome of uncertain tax positions (“UTPs”) and records this
amount as an expense during the year in which UTPs are identified. Each UTP is remeasured each period to reflect any changes in
facts and circumstances until the UTP is resolved. The Company also records interest and penalties associated with these UTPs. The
Company classifies penalties and accrued interest related to income tax liabilities in income tax expense.

n) Research and Development

Research costs are charged to expense in the periods in which they are incurred. Software development costs are deferred and
amortized when technological feasibility has been established, or otherwise are expensed as incurred. The Company has not deferred
any software development costs.

o) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Pension expense under defined benefit pension plans is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method, and
management’s best estimate assumptions. Pension plan assets are valued at fair value. The excess of any cumulative net actuarial gain
(loss) over ten percent of the greater of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year is
amortized over the average remaining service life of its members, or in the case where the plan no longer grants service, over the
average remaining life expectancy of its members. Based on the annual valuation, the under-funded status of the defined benefit
pension plans is recognized as a liability on the consolidated balance sheets, with an offsetting adjustment made to accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). The Company measures its plan assets and obligations at the balance sheet date.

The discount rate assumption used reflects prevailing rates available on high-quality, fixed-income debt instruments. The
assumption for long-term rate of return is based on the yield available on long-dated government and corporate bonds at the
measurement date with an allowance for outperformance based on historical returns of each asset class.

The service cost component of pension and post-retirement costs is recorded in the same line as the other compensation costs for
the relevant employee while non-service components are classified as other income (expense), outside of operating income (loss). The
Company’s net periodic cost is disclosed in note 16.

p) Stock-Based Compensation

In connection with the acquisition of Mitel Networks Corporation, as described in note 3, the Company agreed that all unvested
Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) of Mitel Networks Corporation would be cancelled in exchange for the right to receive a cash
payment from the Company in an amount equal to the transaction price per share following the date such Company RSU would have
vested in accordance with its terms, generally subject to the holder’s continued employment through such date. The Company assessed
the portion of the fair value of the RSUs that related to pre-combination service based on the initial vesting period of the RSUs. Asa
result, on November 30, 2018, the date of acquisition, $21.9 was recorded as a liability in accounts payable and other accrued
liabilities relating to pre-combination service, with the remaining balance to be expensed on a graded-vesting basis over the remaining
service period. For the year ended December 31, 2019, $9.4 was expensed for current service for RSUs (month of December 2018 —
$1.6). An additional $6.4 is expected to be expensed over 2020, 2021 and 2022.



The Company’s parent entity grants stock options to employees of the Company for a fixed number of shares with an exercise
price at least equal to fair market value of the shares at the date of grant. As these options are granted in exchange for service to the
Company, the Company records stock-based compensation expense and a corresponding credit to additional paid-in capital.

Stock-based compensation expense for stock options is based on the fair value estimate made on the grant date using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model for each award and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the employee service period, which is the
vesting period. The Company estimates the volatility of its stock for the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using historical volatility
of the Company’s stock.

Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur, through reversal of the previously recognized expense on the awards that were
forfeited during the year.

q) Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized gains and losses excluded from the consolidated statements of
operations. These unrealized gains and losses consist of foreign currency translation adjustments, which are not adjusted for income
taxes since they relate to indefinite investments in foreign subsidiaries, cash flow hedges, and changes in the unfunded status of
defined benefit pension plans. Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31, 2019 consisted of unrealized gains
on foreign currency translation adjustments of $3.5 (December 31, 2018 — unrealized gains of $0.1), unrealized losses on cash flow
hedges of $31.5 (December 31, 2018 — unrealized losses of $11.9), and unrealized gains on defined benefit pension plans of $6.6
(December 31, 2018 — unrealized losses of $5.0).

r) Advertising Costs

The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred, except for cooperative advertising obligations, which are expensed at the time
the related sales are recognized and the advertising credits are eamed. Cooperative advertising obligations are recorded as a reduction
to revenue when the cooperative advertising obligation is estimated to be used for Mitel product or services and are recorded as
selling, general and administrative expenses when the cooperative advertising obligation is estimated to be used for cooperative
advertising of Mitel products and services. Advertising costs are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses. For the year
ended December 31, 2019, the Company incurred $8.4 of advertising costs, of which $5.3 related to cooperative advertising expenses
(period ended December 31, 2018 — $0.1 of advertising costs, of which nil related to cooperative advertising expenses).

s) Product Warranties

At the time revenue is recognized, a provision for estimated warranty costs is recorded as a component of cost of sales. The
warranty accrual represents the Company’s best estimate of the costs necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as
of the balance sheet date based on the terms of the warranty, which vary by customer and product, historical product return rates and
estimated average repair costs. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty provisions and adjusts the
amounts as necessary.

t) Restructuring, Integration and Acquisition-related Costs

Restructuring costs generally relate to workforce reductions and facility reductions incurred to eliminate duplication of activities
as a result of acquisitions or to improve operational efficiency. Costs related to workforce reductions are recorded when the Company
has committed to a plan of termination and notified the employees of the terms of the plan. Costs related to facility reductions
primarily consist of lease termination obligations for vacant facilities, which generally include the remaining payments on an
operating lease. Lease termination obligations are reduced for probable future sublease income. In addition, integration costs include
professional services and consulting services incurred to complete the integration of acquisitions, which are expensed as incurred.
Acquisition-related costs consist of incremental costs incurred for diligence activities and closing costs for acquisitions and are
expensed as incurred.

u) Accounting Pronouncements Adopted in 2019

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 “Leases™ to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by
recognizing operating lease assets and operating lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements. The FASB subsequently issued ASU 2018-10, ASU 2018-11, ASU 2018-20 and ASU 2019-01, which clarified the
guidance in ASU 2016-02. The ASUs retain the current accounting for finance leases and do not make significant changes to the
recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows by a lessee for operating leases. The ASUs also retain the
current accounting for lessors.



The Company adopted the ASUs in 2019 under the modified retrospective approach and elected certain practical expedients
permitted under the transition guidance, including to retain the historical lease classification as well as relief from reassessing expired
or existing contracts to determine if they contain leases. The adoption did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations, however did have a mhaterial effect on the consolidated balance sheet as a result of the recognition of right-of-
use assets and corresponding operating lease liabilities. The Company elected to adopt the ASUs with an effective date of January 1,
2019 and as a result prior periods were not restated. As the adoption did not result in a change to the Company’s net assets, there was
no cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as at the adoption date.

The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Where the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the Company records the lease as a finance lease, as if the asset had been purchased outright and
financed. Our finance lease assets and liabilities are not material and total $5.7 at December 31, 2019 ($3.8 at December 31, 2018).

Where the lease is determined to be an operating lease, the Company records an operating lease right-of-use asset and current
and non-current operating lease liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The right-of-use asset represents the company’s right to
use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from
the lease. Operating lease right-of-use assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease
payments over the lease term. As most of the operating leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company generally uses its
incremental borrowing rate based on the estimated rate of interest for collateralized borrowing over a similar term of the lease
payments at commencement date. The lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain
that the Company will exercise that option. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease obligations for its short-term leases, which are defined
as leases with an expected initial term of 12 months or less. The Company’s short-term leases were not material for the year ended
December 31, 2019. The Company has elected to consider both the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

Additional information relating to the Company’s operating leases is included in note 11.

. v) Accounting Pronouncements Issued, but not yet Adopted
Credit losses on financial instruments

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13 “Financial Instruments — Credit Losses” and other related amendments to improve
information on credit losses for financial assets and net investment in leases that are not accounted for at fair value through net
income. The ASU replaces the current incurred loss impairment methodology with a methodology that reflects expected credit
losses. The ASU is effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating
the effect the adoption of this ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Changes to disclosure requirements for defined benefit plans

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-14 “Disclosure Framework — Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Defined
Benefit Plans” to improve the effectiveness of disclosures for defined benefit plans. The ASU is effective for the Company for fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effect the adoption of
this ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

3. ACQUISITION

On November 30, 2018, the Company acquired Mitel Networks Corporation (NASDAQ:MITL, TSX:MNW), a global provider
of unified video, voice and content communications solutions. The Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of common stock
of Mitel Networks Corporation in exchange for total consideration of $1,934.5, which includes amounts paid to cash out all in-the-
money stock options as well as vested restricted stock units. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company completed a financing
of senior debt, as described in note 10.

The Company expects to leverage the research and development workforce acquired as well as realize synergies from past
acquisitions by Mitel Networks Corporation. These factors contributed to the recognition of goodwill for the acquisition.



The Company is required to allocate the purchase price to tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their fair values. The excess of the purchase price over those fair values is recorded as goodwill. The purchase price
and allocation of the purchase price is as follows:

November 30, 2018
Net assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENts.........c.cocevceeereirecrecrennrnreeeernserenennes $ 70.2
Accounts receivable®............cocovrvrniinininiine 168.2
Inventories. .........ccrevnenes et er et sttt e en s sn s e tenanas 67.4
Other current assets® ...........ccccovveveercenenne eetetretee e ennas 84.3
Deferred tax @SSet........cceeeeerenrenrirrereeseescrsensenseneseeseesesereesesnes 22.4
Property and eqUIPIMENt .........cc.eceeeereiiinrenrinneinisiniesieniesennes 46.5
Intangible assets — customer relationships®®...............coceenun. 492.1
Intangible assets — developed technology®® ...............ccoceueune 815.4
Intangible assets — trademarks®® .............ccccocevrvviirenenviiininnns 13.5
GOOAWILIO ...ttt ettt sesanens 802.5
Other NON-CUITENE @SSELS......c.eeveoreerereerereerraeraeereresereeseerersnesens 12.2
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities™ ...........ccccovreruenn. (302.4)
Current portion of deferred revenue.............ccooviniiininnniineas (105.7)
Current portion of long-term debt.............coccoeinvininninininnens (2.6)
Long-term portion of deferred revenue............ocovvvinivvinninnane (36.6)
Long-term debt.........cccovererenrenieieeerceceenencrnrseeresreresennes (1.6)
Deferred tax liability ........ccceceevurverienierccernrrtceicieiesieins (90.0)
Pension liability.......c..ccccovveeiinnineniinininccencinrcnn 91.9)
Other non-current liabilities ........c.cccvveveieveeneninnecnnnencnncninncnne. (29.4)
Net assets aCqUITed...........corererrererrceererceensenienersressesnsseseresns $ 1,934.5
Consideration given:
Cash paid to Mitel Networks Corporation shareholders and
warrantholders in November 2018 ..........c.ccoeveenenenvecrcncnes $ 1,387.7
Cash paid to repay amounts outstanding under the senior
credit facility of Mitel Networks Corporation.................... 510.6
Cash paid to holders of Mitel Networks Corporation options,
performance share units and restricted stock units in
December 2018®..........ooiiieiereeerrreeereetereneseene e esesennae 36.2
Total consideration Given ...........c.covreieemsercinicicneninnesiieeeseenees 3 1,934.5

(1) Fair value of accounts receivable consists of gross contractual amounts receivable of $179.8, less best estimate of amounts not
expected to be collected of $11.6.

(2) Other current assets include restricted cash of $1.4.

(3) Intangible assets — customer relationships are expected to be amortlzed over their estimated useful life of 7 years.

(4) Intangible assets — developed technology are expected to be amortized over their estimated useful life of 7 years.

(5) Intangible assets — trademarks are expected to have an indefinite life.

(6) Neither the goodwill nor the intangible assets are expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

(7) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $22.9 relating to pre-combination service for the Mitel Networks Corporation
RSU plan that was continued. The plan is further described under note 2 (p).

(8) Cash paid for in-the-money options, performance share units and vested, restricted stock units.

Mitel Network Corporation’s results of operations are included in the consolidated statements of operations from the date of
acquisition. The amount of revenue from the acquisition included in the Company’s results of operations for the period ended
December 31, 2018 was $125.6. The amount of net loss from the acquisition included in the Company’s results of operations for the
period ended December 31, 2018 was $4.1.



4. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

.

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges.........ccocceeeecrcnnnncne. $ 26.4 3 327
Unbilled receivables .........c.cceecveeveerrenveeiiieeneeeerereeeereeennnens 4.8 4.2
Income tax receivable........cccovveveeeeeeiiiesieee e 9.7 9.4
Other receivables ..........ceeeeveeceeeieeerreccerreerereeesreeeereeseeesees 19.6 33.7
Restricted cash........coocviiinciiniiicsncn 1.3 1.4
$ 61.8 $ 81.4
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost amortization Net Cost amortization Net
Property and Equipment ............cccovevvinnnininccnninnoenns $ 857 § (30.1) $ 556 3 481 § (24) $§ 45.7

Depreciation expense on property and equipment recorded in the year ended December 31, 2019 amounted to $27.7 (period
ended December 31, 2018 — $2.4).

6. IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost amortization Net Cost amortization Net
Developed technology .........cceveeeeerineerninccceeenercene $ 8154 § (126.2) $ 689.2 $ 8154 $ 9.7) $ 8057
Customer relationships........cc..ccevceeeecereericricncrncnnene 492.1 (76.2) 415.9 492.1 (5.9) 486.2
Trademarks ........ccccoceeveeivrieenieeneenrencreensessescsessnsennes 135 — 13.5 13.5 — 13.5
Patents and Other..........cccccocecerirecnvenicnninciiienenns 24 (1.8) 0.6 0.6 — 0.6
$1,3234 § (204.2) $1,119.2 $1,3216 $ (15.6) $1,306.0

The cost for customer relationships, developed technology and trademarks represents the fair value of intangible assets upon
acquisition, as described in note 3. The customer relationships and developed technology are being amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of seven years. The patents and other consists primarily of the cost to register and defend patents and
are primarily amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of four years.

Amortization of identifiable intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2019 was $188.9 (period ended December 31,

2018 — $15.6). The estimated amortization expense, related to intangible assets in existence as of December 31, 2019, over the next
five fiscal years is as follows: 2020 — $187.9, 2021 — $187.8, 2022 — $187.7, 2023 — $187.7 and 2024 — $187.7.

7. GOODWILL
Goodwill relates to the November 30, 2018 acquisition of Mitel Networks Corporation, as described in note 3.

Goodwill, December 31, 2019 and 2018..................... $ 8025



8. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

. December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
' Debt issue costs relating to the revolving
credit facility, net.........ccoeeeeervevernrecrenennns $ 2.3 $ 2.8
Contract COSES .....c.ceeereeruererrecenieeecetraeeenaens : 39.9 8.6
Other non-current assets........c..cooereerererenenes 8.6 9.6
$ 50.8 $ 21.0
9. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
December 31,2019 December 31,2018
Trade payables ..........c.ccccveeveveeveerernencnennane $ 45.8 $ 46.4
Employee-related payables ............ccccceuenen.e. 54.3 83.2
Accrued liabilities ........c.occoverrreerereeeereeennne 75.3 98.5
Restructuring, warranty and other provisions 17.0 16.9
Other payables.........ccccceoerennriicrcrccnneenerneenne 37.0 334
$ 2294 $ 278.4
10. LONG-TERM DEBT
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
First lien term loan, seven-year term, maturing
November 2025 .........oovvieeereeircreeneeneresreeseeeserenns $ 1,108.8 $ 1,120.0
Second lien term loan, eight-year term, maturing
November 2026 .........ccoceeererververerencereesenseeessessesens 260.0 260.0
, Revolving credit facility, maturing November 2023... , 48.0 —
Unamortized original issue discount ............cccccccenuenne. (7.2) (7.9)
Unamortized debt iSSUe COStS .......oovevviviirinccmneneennnne (38.0) (42.6)
Finance 1€ases...........ccccevuerurericrienininicninineccceneinenes 5.7 3.8
1,377.3 1,333.3
Less: current POrtion.........cveceereeserercesceseeernnessceneecsennes (12.6) (13.7)
$ 1,364.7 $ 1,319.6
2018 Credit Facilities

On November 30, 2018, in connection with the acquisition of Mitel Networks Corporation (as described in note 3), the
Company completed borrowings under the 2018 Credit Facilities. The senior credit facilities consist of a $1,120.0 first lien term loan,
a $260.0 second lien term loan and a $100.0 revolving credit facility (together, the “2018 Credit Facilities™).

Costs incurred in connection with the 2018 Credit Facilities of $43.2 were recorded net against long-term debt and are being
amortized over the duration of each respective term loan. Costs incurred of $2.9 relating to the revolving credit facility have been
recorded as other non-current assets and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the revolving credit facility. In
addition, the Company incurred a commitment fee for the period from August 27, 2018 to November 29, 2018 of $14.5, which was
expensed to restructuring, integration and acquisition-related costs on the consolidated statement of operations in the period ended
December 31, 2018.

The first lien term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 4.50% or, at the option of the Company, a base rate plus an applicable
margin. The first lien term loan requires quarterly repayments of $2.8 with the balance due on maturity in November 2025. In
addition, the first lien term loan requires annual payments of a certain percentage of excess cash flow (as defined in the credit
agreement), to be paid within 95 days of the end of the fiscal year, beginning with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019. The
estimated excess cash flow payment for the year ended December 31, 2019 is nil. The second lien term loan bears interest at LIBOR
plus 8.75% or, at the option of the Company, a base rate plus an applicable margin. The second lien term loan requires no quarterly
repayments and is due on maturity in November 2026. The revolving credit facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 4.50% or, at the



option of the Company, a base rate plus an applicable margin and matures in November 2023. The revolving credit facility has a
0.50% commitment fee for any undrawn amounts.

On October 25, 2018 the Company entered into an interest rate swap to effectively fix the LIBOR portion of the interest rate on
approximately 70% of its outstanding borrowings under the 2018 Credit Facilities for the period from April 2019 to February 2024, as
described in note 17. '

The 2018 Credit Facilities have customary default clauses and contain affirmative and negative covenants, including: periodic
financial reporting requirements, limitations on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, limitations on liens, limitations on
investments, and limitations on the payment of dividends and repurchases of shares. The Company was in compliance with these -
covenants at December 31, 2018 and 2019. In addition, when the revolving credit facility is more than 35% utilized (excluding up to
$10.0 of utilization from undrawn letters of credit) at the end of any fiscal quarter, beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2019,
the Company is required to have a Net First Lien Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2018 Credit Facilities) below 6.25:1.00. The Net
First Lien Leverage Ratio was not applicable for the first three quarters of 2019 as the revolver balance was less than 35% utilized. At
December 31, 2019, the Net First Lien Leverage Ratio was 5.17.

Other

The Company has additional credit facilities totaling $2.2, of which $0.8 was utilized at December 31, 2019 (December 31,
2018 — $3.8, of which $1.0 was utilized), primarily to provide letters of credit.

11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

Operating Leases
The Company primarily leases facilities in the U.S and Europe under operating leases. For the year ended December 31, 2019,
the Company’s expense for operating leases, which approximates the cash paid, was $32.5 (one-month period ended December 31,
. 2018~ $3.6).

Other information on operating leases is as follows:

Weighted average lease term remaining at December 31, 2019...... 8.9 years
Weighted average discount rate of operating lease obligations at

December 31, 2019......cuiveeieeeeieieeeieeeererenee e s saeseseeseeseene 6.1%
Assets obtained in exchange for operating lease obligations for

the year ended December 31, 2019........ccoverereriererereriecenreenenenen $ 333

Future minimum operating lease payments, primarily consisting of base rent for facilities, are as follows:

Fiscal year

2020....ceeeieetrieretree oottt e b e e se st sa e sh s st e $ 24.1
2021ttt ettt b et e et sr e s e e e s e 19.9
2022..cciieieetrierert et e ea kst stese s esn b e 15.8
2023 ...ttt ettt s et sa e st s eh e s e 12.5
2024 .......oeitetireeeete et ettt oot beas st e e e et a e e ne s seasre b enees 8.9
TRETEAMET ...ttt ntestsaesae bbb ssonen 46.8
Total undiscounted lease Obligations..........ccc.evevrererereivernrerreeseseseernaens © 1280
Less: iMPUted interest........covvreerereeeererceneeniereereesseseseserceseesersessessosnones (32.8)
Total operating lease obligation, December 31, 2019..........ceccoevvrieneenes 95.2
LeSS: CUITENt POTION. ......couerriririmiiiisiitesteseste st eseaeresbesaesne s sssnsasans (22.4)

Non-current portion of operating lease obligation, December 31, 2019. § 72.8



Guaradntees

. The Company has the following major types of guarantees:

Product Warranties

The Company provides its customers with standard warranties on hardware and software for periods up to 15 months. The
following table details the changes in the warranty liability:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Balance, Opening.........cccceueeeeecnrennrrenrerersene $ 2.6 3 —
ACQUISIHONS ...cecevveererieieneerereeiieee e seeseees — 2.6
Warranty costs paid........ccceceeeceeiienerrenenennenne .3) (0.3)
Warranties eXpense .........c.ccoceeeeervererseereeseenns 2.6 0.3
Balance, closing .......c.c.cooecvverenrininnceeneneneenens $ 29 $ 2.6

Intellectual Property Indemnification Obligations

The Company enters into agreements with customers and suppliers on a regular basis that include limited intellectual property
indemnification obligations that are customary in the industry. These guarantees generally require the Company to compensate the
other party for certain damages and costs incurred as a result of third-party intellectual property claims arising from these transactions.
The nature of these intellectual property indemnification obligations prevents the Company from making a reasonable estimate of the
maximum potential amount it could be required to pay to its customers and suppliers. Historically, the Company has not made any
significant indemnification payments under such agreements and no amount has been accrued in the Consolidated Financial
Statements with respect to these guarantees.

Contingencies

Letters of Credit and Guarantees

Letters of credit, financial guarantees and other similar instruments are reviewed regularly, and the results of these reviews are
considered in assessing the adequacy of the Company’s reserve for possible credit and guarantee losses. Letters of credit, bank
guarantees and other similar instruments amounted to $3.8 at December 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 — $5.3). The estimated fair
value of letters of credit, bank guarantees and similar instruments, which is equal to the fees paid to obtain the obligations, was not
significant at December 31, 2019 or December 31, 2018.

Legal proceedings

The Company is party to legal proceedings, claims and potential claims arising in the normal course of business. The
Company’s management and legal counsel estimate that any monetary liability or financial impact of such claims or potential claims
to which the Company might be subject after final adjudication would not be material to the Consolidated Financial Statements. In
circumstances where the outcome of the lawsuit is expected to be unfavorable, the Company has recorded a provision for the expected
settlement amount. Where the expected settlement amount is a range, the Company has provided for the best estimate within that
range. If no amount within the range is more likely, the Company has provided for the minimum amount of the range.

12. COMMON SHARES
Share Capital

At December 31, 2019, the share capital of the Company comprises of 134.7 million shares outstanding. The Company may
issue an unlimited number of shares.

On November 30, 2018, the Company issued 134.5 million shares for cash proceeds of $672.6. The proceeds, together with
amounts borrowed under the 2018 Credit Facilities (note 10) were used to fund the acquisition of Mitel Networks Corporation, as
described in note 3.

In February 2019, the Company issued 0.2 million ordinary shares for cash proceeds of $0.8.



Distributions

In December 2018, the Company made an in-kind distribution of $1.2 to its shareholder consisting of units in an investment
partnership.

Stock Options Plan

In December 2018, the Company’s parent entity adopted a stock option plan. Options were first granted under the plan in 2019.
The parent entity’s board of directors has the discretion to determine and subsequently amend the terms of awards granted under the
plan, subject to limits contained in the plan.

Options granted under the plan are generally granted for a fixed number of shares with an exercise price at least equal to the fair
market value of the shares at the date of grant and have a term of ten years.

The plan permits the grant of up to 12.8 million options to be granted to employees of the parent entity or its subsidiaries. Any
forfeitures, lapses or terminations again become available for grant under the plan. As at December 31, 2019, 0.3 million options were
available to be granted under the plan.

Stock Option Information

The following is a summary of the Company’s stock option activity:

Year Ended
December 31, 2019
Weighted
Average
Number of Exercise
Options Price

Outstanding options:

Balance, Opening...........ccoeveeereereresneseeseseresessenenene — 3 —
Granted.........ocevveeernerneeneenieeneeerenreeeeeaens 16.3 5.70
EXErcised......cccovivienienienrenienenienenenieneencnnene — —
Forfeited.......cccooevrvrinnnincnininnnniniincen, 54 5.71
Cancelled or expired........c.cocvvieniiinininnnene. (0.2) 5.86

Balance, closing............ccccoveererrereeenerserreereceeennens 107 $ 5.69

Number of options exercisable ..............ceverenrence. — § 539

(1) Number of options exercisable is less than 0.1.

The following table summarizes information about the Company’s stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31,
2019:

Total outstanding ' Total exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Remaining Remaining
Number of Contractual Number of Contractual
Exercise Price Options Life Options Life
$5.00....ceceeeereeeeeie e 8.2  9.5years —m 0.1 years
B8.00......c et 2.5  9.5years —® 0.1 years
10.7 —m

(1) Number of options exercisable is less than 0.1.



Additional information with respect to unvested stock option activity is as follows:

b Year Ended
December 31, 2019

Weighted

- Average

Number of Exercise

Options Price
Outstanding options:

Unvested, beginning of year.............ccooeerrcenenes —  $ —
Granted in the normal course ............ccccceevvennee. 16.3 5.70
VEStEd.....ccovrierrriienrnrinierciereseeeseeeeeeeesenaennes 0.2) 5.80
Forfeited ........cccocvveveieniereenreeereeeeceeeeeeeeereens (5.9) 5.71
Unvested, end of year...........ccccoceecenvevercverenenen. 107 § 5.69

Stock-based compensation expense

Stock-based compensation expense for stock options is based on the fair value of the stock options on the date of grant,
calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
Assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model are summarized as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2019

Risk-free interest rate ..........c.ooceeeeeecercnnenrenne 2.2%
Dividends.......cooeevreviinennininiininnniiiin 0.0%
Expected volatility........ccceocoeerevvecncrcnnnunnnens 29.8%
Expected life of the option............ccovevvvincenen. 6.25 years
Weighted average fair value per option.......... $ 1.48

At December 31, 2019, there was $14.0 of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to stock options that is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.5 years.

13. RESTRUCTURING, INTEGRATION AND ACQUISITION-RELATED COSTS

Restructuring, integration and acquisition-related costs of $48.8 were recorded in the year ended December 31, 2019. The costs
consisted of $24.5 of workforce reduction and facility-reduction related charges and $24.3 of integration and acquisition-related
charges. Integration-related charges include professional fees and incidental costs relating to the integration of acquisitions.
Acquisition-related charges consisted primarily of legal and advisory fees.

Restructuring, integration and acquisition-related costs of $43.6 were recorded in the period ended December 31, 2018. The
costs consisted of $0.5 of workforce reduction and facility-reduction related charges, $4.2 of integration-related charges and $38.9 of
acquisition-related charges. Integration-related charges include professional fees and incidental costs relating to the integration of
acquisitions. Acquisition-related charges consisted primarily of legal and advisory fees.

At December 31, 2019, a workforce reduction liability of $7.8 and the current portion of the lease termination obligation
liability of $4.2 are included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, with the remaining non-current portion of the lease
termination obligation liability of $1.0 included in other non-current liabilities.

The following table summarizes details of the Company’s restructuring liabilities:

Facility-
Reduction
Related, Including
Lease
Workforce Termination

Description Reduction Obligations Total
Provision assumed through acquisition (note 3) ...........cccooeuneee. $ 77 § . 32 $ 109
Period ended December 31, 2018:

ChaTZES. .....ooiiriireerccriere ettt e s aenais 1.1 (0.6) 0.5

Cash payments ..........cccoeeverreecrerninricrieneneneenenesseesiosesses (0.3) (0.2) (0.5)




Facility-

Reduction
N ' Related, Including
Lease
Workforce Termination
Description Reduction Obligations Total
Balance of provision as of December 31, 2018........ccccccevuenenen. $ 85 § 24 $ 109
Year ended December 31, 2019:
L CRATEES...cvevierieeeieee ettt e e seees e e s e sessessenesenaenes 16.4 8.1 24.5
Cash payments .........cc.coccevrrveerirnneiceneneeiecnes e (17.1) (5.3) (22.9)
Balance of provision as of December 31, 2019 .........ccccceveueenene $ 78 $ 52§ 130
14. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31,2018
Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts TCEIVADIE.........coeverreereirererieseeererieene e $ 43.9 $ (32.1)
IDVENLOTIES ....eevevieviereereeneetaieeesneeseeracestecrerereneeesesaessascsseneeons (13.2) (1.6)
Other current assets........cc.ccceereererneererenrencmnerenneersessesssnenceens 18.9 29
Other NON-CUITENE ASSELS ......overurereererrereereerereererrasenerneeserserses (31.2) (7.9
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........ccccocercereccneene. (53.8) (23.1)
Deferred revenue ... 17.6 13.5
Other non-current liabilities.........ccccvvererrvenreriieneniincensencnesneenns 11.1 (6.9)
Change in pension liability .........cccoeeienenieccinncnnnennncennneee (10.9) (1.5)
$ (17.6) 3 (56.2)
INtErest PAYMENLS........ceoererreerernereeresieioseesesneseesioresessresessessessessessones $ 108.8 $ 9.2
INCOME taX PAYINENLS........ccverereeerreeerierasreesseresesesesseseseesensesessaesens $ 7.9 $ 0.6
Disclosure of non-cash activities during the period:
Property and equipment additions financed through inventory......... $ 10.6 $ 0.6 "
Property and equipment additions financed through finance leases.. $ 44 $ —
15. INCOME TAXES
Details of income taxes are as follows:
Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Current income tax recovery (expense)............ $ (¢ %)) $ 1.6
Deferred income tax recovery (expense).......... 36.9 5.4
$ 28.2 $ 7.0

The income tax recovery reported differs from the amount computed by applying U K. rates to the loss before income taxes. The
reasons for these differences and their tax effects are as follows:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Expected tax rate..........ccoeveveeeemenecenenessessesssessessuone 19.0% 19.0%
Expected taX TECOVETY....ovvvrererecrercnreneneereescreruesessesines $ 46.1 $ 9.8
Foreign tax rate differences ..........coeevinrniciniiennn, 14.5 2.8
Net change in valuation allowance on deferred tax
ASSELS .vvveerurierinreerrerrsrreenteeeeaeessanessrseeserrassssesesnnne (14.7) 1.2

Permanent differences............ccceeennereircennnnnnnnnnnes (5.5 (6.0)
Tax credits and other adjustments...........coourvueecnnne. (12.2) (0.8)

Income tax recovery (EXpPense) ........ccuceveereerervesviseenns $ 28.2 3 7.0




-

The tax effect of components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

.

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Assets (liabilities):
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards........ $ 2154 $ 203.8
Capital loss carryforwards...........c.coceereeeereecencee. 34.7 34.9
Allowance for doubtful accounts...........ccccecue.. 1.8 1.7
INVERLOTIES ...t 0.2 1.5
Restructuring and other provisions...........c.c.c.... 4.8 13.0
Pension liability ......c.ccocovrercrricicciiiinen, 14.1 17.9
Revenue recognition...........ccceeeveecerceecrcriinesennes 8.5 0.9
Intangibles .....cccecveeveereeeecenreerennnrrrenceseneeeeeeneene (249.1) (280.7)
Long-term debt and other ..........cccevervvrenennnrcnne 40.5 6.3
Sales-type lease obligations..........cccceeerereneencnnen 16.4 16.9
Property and equipment.............ceeeveeeeneeecreceens (1.1) (2.9)
Operating lease liabilities ..........coceevenerverencnnee (24.3) —
Right of use assets ........ccoccecirrviiniecicnninennene 243 —
Total deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities,
before valuation allowance...........ccccecevveeerercreecnnnes 69.2 . 13.3
Valuation allowance..........c.cocueereereenenenreerennnesseesenscnns (85.2) (71.4)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) .........ccocecerrerereennnnes $ (16.0) $ (58.1)

The Company updates its assessment of the realizability of its deferred tax assets at each reporting period. At December 31,
2019, as a result of uncertainty regarding the future utilization of certain deferred tax assets, there was a valuation allowance of $85.2
against deferred tax assets primarily in the U.K. and U.S. (December 31, 2018 — valuation allowance of $71.4 against deferred tax
assets primarily in the U.K. and U.S.). Future changes in estimates of taxable income could result in a significant change to the
valuation allowance. For the year ended December 31, 2019 and period ended December 31, 2018, there was no significant changes to
the assessment of the realizability of the Company’s deferred tax assets.

The Company had the following tax-effected loss carryforwards and tax credits:

December 31, 2019

Tax Tax
Year of Expiry Losses Credits
2020, ceeeeueeeieeecrcr et e et e e s sre bt e s bt s st et s et R e b bR e s bt s e srbsenResaes 3 45 § 23
2021ttt e e s sa e s r s et s et st e e b e e s b en e e s e s e s s aessanans 0.7 1.0
2022ttt ettt s bbb e b s r e s re s s et e s bbb e senbesant 1.4 1.1
2023-2039 ...ttt ete et e s e e s st a s s sbessassuesretsesassnsesinasten 37.0 82.5
INAETINILE ..ccovviereeieieeereeree ettt st sr e sae st esessatesansesbessasons 51.7 68.1
TOtAL ... ee e e e see e sessessee s sne e e s e st e ee e e e e s een e e ee s et e e eemnennen $ 953 $§ 1550

These tax loss carryforwards primarily relate to operations in the U.S. and France. Tax credit carryforwards primarily relate to
operations in the U.S. and Canada. The U.S. has an annual restriction on the utilization of tax-effected loss carryforwards and tax
credits of $69.1.

The Company operates in multiple jurisdictions throughout the world and its returns are subject to ongoing examinations by
certain taxing authorities in those jurisdictions. The Company regularly assesses the status of these examinations and the potential for
adverse outcomes to determine the adequacy of the provisions for income taxes. The Company believes that it has adequately
provided for tax adjustments that are probable as a result of any ongoing or future examinations.

The Company has undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries which are considered to be indefinitely reinvested and
accordingly no provision for income taxes has been provided. The determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred income tax
liability for undistributed earnings is not practicable. If circumstances change and it becomes apparent that some or all of the
undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries will be remitted to a parent company, the Company will record a tax
liability.



Uncertain Tax Positions

* At December 31, 2019, we recorded a provision for uncertain tax positions of $30.1 (December 31, 2018 — $28.6), of which
$12.9 is included in other non-current liabilities and $17.2 is recorded net against deferred tax assets in the consolidated balance sheet.
The amount of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2019 that would affect the effective tax rate, if recognized, was $17.4.

The Company recognizes any interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. At December
31, 2019, in addition to the unrecognized tax benefits above, the Company has a balance of $4.7 for the potential payment of interest
and penalties (December 31, 2018 — $3.4). For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company expensed $1.3 for the potential
payment of interest and penalties (period ended December 31, 2018 — $0.6).

The Company routinely engages in discussions and negotiations with tax authorities regarding tax matters in various
jurisdictions throughout the year. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that certain federal, foreign, and state tax matters
may be concluded in the next 12 months. The Company estimates that the unrecognized tax benefits inclusive of interest at December
31, 2019 are expected to be reduced by approximately $1.1 in the next 12 months. :

The Company or its subsidiaries file income tax returns in a significant number of countries. These tax returns are subject to
examination by local taxing authorities. The following summarizes the open years by major jurisdiction: Canada — 2015 to 2019 and
for specific types of transactions from 2011 to 2012; the U.S. — 2017 to 2019; Germany — 2013 to 2019; France — 2017 to 2019;
Sweden — 2014 to 2019; Switzerland — 2015 to 2019; and the U.K. — 2016 to 2019.

At December 31, 2019, the Company is presently under audit in France for the 2012 and 2013 tax years, Germany for the 2014-
2017 years, India for the 2017 and 2018 years, Canada for the 2011 through 2017 tax years and in the U.S. for 2015 and 2016. The
resolution of tax matters in these jurisdictions is not expected to be material to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

16. PENSION PLANS

The Company maintains defined contribution pension plans or defined benefit plans that cover a significant portion of its
employees.

Defined Contribution Plans )

The Company contributes to defined contribution pension plans on the basis of the percentage specified in each plan. The costs
of the defined contribution plans are expensed as incurred. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company made contributions
to these plans of $11.2 (period ended December 31, 2018 — $0.9).

Defined Benefit Plans
Description of defined benefit plans
The Company’s projected benefit obligation and plan assets, by defined benefit plan, at December 31, 2019 were as follows:

U.K. Plan Switzerland Plan All Other Total
Projected benefit obligation...........coceevevevinerenereereeieneecncenes $ 2854 § 914 § 173 § 394.1
Plan assets ........cocveeveeermecrinieninneninesiniei e es 2354 84.4 — 319.8
Pension liability.......ccoccoevnececnnirniciiiiecrnenccssennes $ 500 $ 70 § 173 § 74.3

The Company’s projected benefit obligation and plan assets, by defined benefit plan, at December 31, 2018 were as follows:

i U.K. Plan Switzerland Plan All Other Total
Projected benefit obligation...........cccoveimiirencecerivnniecsrenennns $ 2606 $ 896 3 161 § 3663
Plan @SSELS .....cocveierrierieereeeeerraeeressressessressressssnnnsesssrsessssesssens 193.1 77.1 — 270.2
Pension Hability .......cccccoveeceereeeeeeeimnenccnerireriieeneerenieescisisones 3 675 § 125 § 16.1 §  96.1

UK. Plan

The Company operates a partially funded defined benefit plan in the UK. (“U.K. Plan”), which was closed to new members in
2001 and was closed to new service in 2012. '



Switzerland Plan

. The Company operates a partially funded multiple-employer pension plan in Switzerland (“Switzerland Plan”). Under the
Switzerland Plan, retirees generally benefit from the receipt of a perpetual annuity at retirement based on an accrued value at the date
of retirement. The accrued value is related to the actual returns on contributions during the working period. As the plan is a multiple-
employer plan, the Consolidated Financial Statements include the Company’s pro-rata share of assets, projected benefit obligation and
pension benefit cost. ’

Other

The Company operates unfunded defined benefit plans related to France, Italy and Germany (“France Plan”, “Italy Plan” and
“Germany Plan”, respectively). Under the France Plan and Italy Plan, retirees generally benefit from a lump sum payment upon
retirement or departure. Under the Germany Plan, retirees generally benefit from the receipt of a perpetual annuity at retirement based
on their years of service and ending salary. '

The defined benefit plan disclosures below are provided in aggregate for all defined benefit plans, unless otherwise noted.

Plan assets and projected benefit obligation information

The change in aggregate projected benefit obligation and plan assets was as follows:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation, opening...........c.ccoecvverreuenns $ 366.3 $ —
Benefit obligation from acquisition.................. — 363.3
SETVICE COS c.uevverrnirieeeerenereeereesreeseerensennencenees 1.2 0.1
Interest COSt .....ccccomrmrininniriniinienieniciinn s 8.6 0.8
Employee contributions........c..ceeeeereereenneeenennes 0.8 0.1
Actuarial 108s (ZaIn) ......cccoeeevverreeireenceninnsnenns 244 4.8
Benefits paid.......ccccceveeveeiineenenenerieieneneeniene (8.8) 2.0)
Curtailments ......c.cc.cervcererieniinicnnnenennnne 6.1) —
Settlements ........cccceeeeieneriniceecnieeneenieneenns @G.1 —
Foreign exchange ...........cccocvnvvenirincvnniinnnnas 10.8 (0.8)
Benefit obligation, closing ............c.ccoevcerunnnene. $ 394.1 $ 366.3
Year Ended Period Ended

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, opening..................... $ 270.2 $ —
Fair value of plan assets from acquisition......... — 271.4
Actual return on plan assets.........ccccceerecrerrenees 43.2 0.2
Employer contributions ...........cccceeeericricicnnnes 8.0 0.7
Employee contributions............ccccoeevrueirniiiens 0.8 0.1
Benefits paid........c.ccecveeveenienrerennecccnneecinnnienne (8.5) (1.9)
Settlements ......cccoeeveeererneeneeriinecneniere e 3.1 —
Foreign exchange ........cc..cocvvvinuviniiicnnicnnnnns 9.2 (0.3)
Fair value of plan assets, closing............c...c.... $ 319.8 $ 270.2
Net pension liability ..........ccceererercsriinrennnenens $ 74.3 3 96.1




'Ijhe following table provides the Company’s aggregate accumulated benefit obligation:

e December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Accumulated benefit obligation............c.coovervnrirnncnns 390.9 361.5

Periodic benefit cost

The aggregate net periodic benefit cost was as follows:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Current service cost — defined benefit...................... $ 1.2 $ 0.1
INEETESt COSL...cvveeeeerieeereeeereeeeeveesveesenesresneeeseennees 8.6 0.8
Expected return on plan assets.........c.covvvniniininennnnne 9.49) 0.8)
Curtailment .........cccoceeeiniinieinnenneinineee 2.8) —
Net periodic defined benefit cost (recovery).............. $ 2.9 $ 0.1

Assumptions

The following assumptions were used to determine the periodic pension expense for the UK. Plan:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
DiSCOUNL TALE .......vveeerreirrieecieecieeeereeeseeeessaeessnneesonnns 2.95% 3.05%
INflation Tate........coeevviieirieniireeerieeeeieeesneeeesereeserasenene 3.20% 3.25%
Investment returns assumption ...........ccceeceeeeerereraeens 4.01% 4.29%

The following assumptions were used to determine the net present value of the projected pension obligation for the U.K. Plan:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
DISCOUNL TALE......cuverrrereeriirererereirarrerreeeeeesessesarnnnsenrenes 2.05% 2.95%
INFlation FAte.....oeeeieeeieiriccrireerreeeeeeee e aerrnrereeeeeeses 2.80% 3.20%

(1) As aresult of the UK. Plan’s November 2012 pension curtailment, members no longer earn benefits for current service and
therefore the compensation rate increase and average remaining service life are not factors in determining the net present value

of accrued pension benefits.

The following assumptions were used to determine the periodic pension expense for the Switzerland Plan:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
DISCOUNE TALE ......eeeeeereeieererreerrierrereseesesnneesressseesvenese 0.80% 0.95%
INflation TAte.......c.eeeeeviereeeerereereieeeeree e e e seseresseesesenes 1.00% 1.00%
Investment returns assumption ...........ccceeeveeeenvnenees 2.10% 2.20%

The following assumptions were used to determine the net present value of the projected pension obligation for the Switzerland
Plan:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
DiISCOUNL TALE.......vvveeeeeceiiereerirrreeesreeeeercerressesssneesesons 0.10% 0.80%
INFlation TAte........coeeiveeeeeierrreerereerereeseeesserneeesanasnes 1.00% 1.00%
Compensation inCrease rate ............ccoceeverveereeressenenns 1.50% 1.50%

Average remaining service life of employees............ 8 years 9 years



Estimated future benefit payments

The table below reflects the total benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five years and in the aggregate for the
subsequent five years.

Benefit
Payments

2020 .ottt s saassnesna s e s sneesanas 8.6
2021 ettt et et r s st sas s e 8.9
2022 ...ttt et a s s e s essesseesne s nes et e sebes 92
2023 et eer sttt assaassanesna s s asae s neesneenanen 9.2
2024 ...ttt srre e s stassnaesenesrasneeeseneenaresenan 9.6
202522029 ....ooirerecertesrres et se s e e st e st e nnesseseesaeeas 51.1

Contributions

The Company expects to make annual employer contributions of approximately $8.9 (£6.8) to fund the UK. Plan deficit in
2020, 2021 and 2022. The amount of annual employer contributions required to fund the pension deficit is determined every three

years in accordance with U.K. regulations. The Company expects to make employer contributions of $0.5 to fund the Switzerland Plan
in 2020.

Plan assets

The Company’s target allocation and actual pension plan asset allocation by asset category for the U.K Plan were as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2019 December 31,2018 December 31,2018

Actual Target (1) Actual Target (1)
Cash ...oooriirieeecrre e 9% 0% 0% 0%
EQUItIES ...covenritirrieeenreieeereeseeseeeeeneanesaennens 44% 58% 56% 58%
Debt securities........ccceerveereerereeesreereenneeeeenns 47% 2% 44% 42%

(1) Under the current statement of investment principles of the plan, the target allocation includes a 25% allocation to liability-
driven investments (“LDI” funds) and 30% to diversified target return funds. These allocations have been ass1gned to the equity
and debt security targets based on the investments held at December 31, 2019.

The Company’s target allocation and actual pension plan asset allocation by asset category for the Switzerland Plan were as
follows:

December 31,2019 °  December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 December 31, 2018

Actual Target Actual Target
CaSH .ttt 14% 5% 11% 5%
Debt SECUTTHIES ......eeeeveeereerreaeneeeieereeectenreereee 20% 27% 19% 27%
Real eState........ceevurerveieenieerreenicenneereeeenrveneennes 34% 37% 37% 37%
Equities.......cccccerrvcencnncnnee, eereesneeaeraneenressaeenaenne 26% 24% 25% 24%
10111 OSSOSOt 6% 7% 8% 7%

The investment objectives of the pension portfolio of assets are designed to generate returns that will enable the fund to meet its
future obligations. The performance benchmark for the investment managers is to earn in excess of the.index return in those asset
categories, which are actively managed.

The long-term return assumption at December 31, 2019 is 3.5% for the U.K. Plan and 2.2% for the Switzerland Plan. In setting
the overall expected rate of return, the various percentages of assets held in each asset class together with the investment return
expected from that class are taken into account. A consistent approach is used to develop the investment return assumptions. The
approach considers various factors, including historical and expected inflation, bond yields, and returns from specific asset classes.
The assumption is based on consideration of all inputs, with a focus on long-term trends to avoid short-term market influences.



The following table discloses the major category of fair value (as described in note 18):

L ]
Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 2019

Quoted Price in
Active Significant
Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Instruments Inputs Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
CaSh....eiiceeeeee e ere e ae e s srneseeene 3 332 §% — ¥ — 8 33.2
EQUILIES . ..eeeevenerecenecereesctere et eenceeenetssssssestosussnossosesn — 126.2 — 126.2
BONAS.....coorieeeereeeeeree et ve e e asaressnees — 126.7 — 126.7
ReEal €StAte .....ooeeereeneeeereieeee e er e eee s e eee s e e seessnees — — 28.7 28.7
Other ... e — — 5.0 5.0
$ 332 § 2529 § 337 § 3198
Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 2018
Quoted Price in
Active Significant
Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Instruments Inputs Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets .
[T SOOI $ 90 § — 3 — $ 90
EQUILES...vvvconoeveeeneeseseeessssessseseesesessssssssssessesssssnsenesessnns — 126.1 — 126.1
BODAS....coiciiiriieiiereireee et sreess st ee s ssnannas s — 100.4 — 100.4
ReEal StALE ......ccceveeceeierrereerreerree et seeserressvessaeesseensnas — — 28.5 28.5
OtheT ...t e sre e st e st r e s saes s ssnassonne — — 6.2 6.2
$ 90 § 2265 $ 347 § 2702

17. FOREIGN CURRENCY, CREDIT, INTEREST RATE AND CONCENTRATION RISK
Foreign currency risk

The Company operates globally, and therefore incurs expenses in currencies other than its various functional currencies and its
U.S. dollar reporting currency. The Company has used, and may use in the future, foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the fair
value of certain assets and liabilities as well as to hedge likely future cash flows denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity. The Company does not enter into forward contracts for speculative purposes.

Fair value hedging

The Company has used, and may use in the future, foreign currency forward contracts to minimize the short-term impact of
currency fluctuations on foreign currency receivables, payables and intercompany balances. Foreign currency contracts used to hedge
the fair value of foreign currency receivables, payables and intercompany balances are recorded at fair value, with changes in the fair
value recorded as other income (expense) in the consolidated statements of operations. At December 31, 2019, all of the Company’s
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts had a term of 35 days or less. At December 31, 2018, the Company did not have any
outstanding forward contracts used for fair value hedging.

Cash flow hedging

The Company has used, and may use in the future, foreign currency forward contracts to hedge probable future cash flows. Cash
flow hedges are assessed for effectiveness at the time of inception and again at each reporting period. Foreign currency forward
contracts that are assessed as effective are recorded at fair value at each reporting period, with changes in the fair value recorded
through other comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated statements of operations, net of tax. When foreign currency forward
contracts are settled, the unrealized gain or loss is removed from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and recorded as an
increase or decrease to the hedged transaction.



For the year ended December 31, 2019 and period ended December 31, 2018 the Company did not enter into any forward
coritracts for foreign currency cash flow hedging purposes.

On October 25, 2018, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement contingent on the closing of the acquisition of
Mitel. On November 30, 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of Mitel, as described in note 3. The interest rate swap
agreement effectively fixes the LIBOR portion of the interest expense to be approximately 3.1%, on approximately 70% of the term
loans outstanding under the 2018 Credit Facilities for the period from April 2019 to February 2024. As the interest rate swap
agreement was entered into prior to the borrowings under the 2018 Credit Facilities, the change in fair value from the swap agreement
date (October 25, 2018) up to the date of the borrowings (November 30, 2018) of $10.9 was recorded as an expense in the
consolidated statement of operations. Once the borrowings under the 2018 Credit Facilities were completed on November 30, 2018,
the hedge was determined to be effective and continued to be effective through the year ended December 31, 2019. For the year
ended December 31, 2019, a loss of $26.3 was recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) to reflect the change in fair value
during the year (period ended December 31, 2018 — loss of $16.0 was recorded in other comprehensive income(loss)). The interest
rate swap agreement had a fair value of negative $53.2 at December 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 — fair value of negative $26.9).

Interest rate risk

As described in note 10, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily on its credit facilities which bear interest at
LIBOR. The Company has effectively fixed its interest rate on approximately 70% of its term loans outstanding at December 31, 2019
by entering into an interest rate swap agreement, as described above. As a result, the Company’s interest expense is exposed to
changes in interest rates on the remaining 30% of its outstanding debt. The Company periodically reviews its exposure to interest rate
risk and determines what actions, if any, should be taken to mitigate the risk.

In addition, the Company’s defined benefit plans, as described in note 16, are exposed to changes in interest rate risk through
their investment in bonds and the discount rate assumptions on the projected benefit obligation. The Company is not exposed to any
other significant interest rate risk due to the short-term maturity of its monetary assets and current liabilities.

Credit risk

The Company’s financial assets that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
accounts receivable, other receivables, and assets held by the defined benefit pension plan. Cash is generally held in banks with an
investment grade rating. Cash equivalents are invested in government and commercial paper with investment grade credit rating. The
Company is exposed to normal credit risk from customers. However, the Company has a large number of diverse customers, which
minimizes concentrations of credit risk. As at and for the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company had a single distributor in the
U.S. that accounted for 15.2% of the Company’s revenues and 14.3% of the Company’s accounts receivable (as at and for the period
ended December 31, 2018 — single distributor accounted for 18.9% of revenues and 11.5% of the accounts receivable). As at and for
the year ended December 31, 2019 and period ended December 31, 2018, no other single customer accounted for more than 10 percent
of the Company’s revenues or accounts receivable.

Concentration risk

The Company sells its products and services to a broad set of enterprises ranging from large, multinational enterprises, to small
and mid-sized enterprises. Management believes that the Company’s concentration risk is limited by the geographic and industry
characteristics of its customers. The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its significant customers’ financial condition
and generally does not require collateral for its accounts receivable although, in some cases, the Company will require payment in
advance or security in the form of letters of credit or third-party guarantees. Only one customer accounted for more than 10 percent of
the Company’s revenues or accounts receivable, as described above.

Four independent suppliers manufacture a significant portion of the Company’s products. The Company is not obligated to
purchase products from these specific suppliers in any specific quantity, except as the Company outlines in forecasts or orders for
products required to be manufactured by these companies. The Company’s supply agreements with these suppliers results in a
concentration that, if suddenly eliminated, could have an adverse effect on the Company’s operations. While the Company believes
that alternative sources of supply would be available, disruption of its primary sources of supply could create a temporary, adverse
effect on product shipments.

18. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are measured using one of the following three categories:
Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.



Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

-
Assets/Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The Company’s cash equivalents, as described in note 2, are valued using the category Level 2. In addition, the Company’s
interest rate swap, as described in note 17, is valued using the category Level 2. The Company does not have any other significant
financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, other than the investments held by defined benefit pension
plans, as described in note 16.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
long-term debt and the interest rate swap. Due to the short-term maturity of cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable and accounts
payable, the carrying value of these instruments is a reasonable estimate of their fair value. The interest rate swap is recorded at fair
value at each reporting period. At December 31, 2019, the fair value of the first lien term loan and second lien term loan, as described
in note 10, was approximately 95% and 76% of their respective principal balances.

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On November 30, 2018, the Company paid a $10.0 fee to Searchlight Capital Partners LP, an affiliate of shareholders of its
parent entity, for advisory services in relation to the acquisition of Mitel, as described in note 3. The advisory fee was recorded as a
restructuring, integration and acquisition-related cost on the consolidated statement of operations.

On November 27, 2018, the Company entered into a management consulting agreement with certain affiliates of shareholders
of its parent entity. The consulting agreement requires quarterly payments of $0.5 and terminates after eight years, or at the time of
transaction that results in 80% of the parent entity’s equity being held by new shareholders. The Company expensed $2.0 in relation to
this agreement in the year ended December 31, 2019 (period ended December 31, 2018 — $0.2).

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2020, the World Health Organization (the "WHO") declared the outbreak of a novel strain of Coronavirus disease
(“COVID-19”) a “Public Health Emergency of International Concern.” In February 2020, the WHO raised the COVID-19 threat level
from high to very high at a global level and in March 2020, the WHO characterized the COVID-19 as a pandemic.

The worldwide spread of COVID-19 has resulted in authorities implementing numerous measures to contain the virus,
including travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, shelter-in-place orders, and business limitations and shutdowns. The COVID-19
pandemic has created a global slowdown of economic activity, which has, and will likely continue to decrease demand for a broad
variety of goods and services, while also disrupting sales channels and marketing activities until the disease is contained.

As of the date of this report, the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic may impact the Company’s financial condition and
results of operations remains highly uncertain. While the initial effect of the pandemic did not materially affect the Company’s
financial results, the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic may not be fully reflected in the Company’s results of operations and overall
financial performance until future periods. The extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s operational and
financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, actions taken to contain
the virus or its impact and impact on the Company’s suppliers, customers, partners, resellers and employees, all of which are uncertain
and cannot be predicted. ‘

The financial statements have been prepared based upon conditions existing at December 31, 2019. As the outbreak of
COVID-19 occurred after December 31, 2019, its impact is considered an event that is indicative of conditions that arose after the
reporting period and accordingly, no adjustments have been made to financial statements as at December 31, 2019 for the impacts of
COVID-19.

Subsequent events have been evaluated up to June 29, 2020, the date the financial statements were issued.



